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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company ") collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
hereby present the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Relevant Period”).

REVIEW AND RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of mechanical
ventilation and air-conditioning (“MVAC") system for various types
of private and public building projects including infrastructural,
commercial and residential building projects in Hong Kong and
Macau.

With rising geopolitical conflicts and tensions, soaring interest rate,
inflationary pressure and challenges associated with post-pandemic
economic recovery in both Mainland China and Hong Kong, the
business environment in 2023 continued to be challenging and
overall market sentiment had remained weak. During the Relevant
Period, the Group's performance has been impacted by skilled labour
shortage, high raw material and labour costs, fierce competition in
tendering process and over-run.

During the first half of 2023, amongst other projects, a new project
was awarded to the Group with an initial contract sum exceeding
HK$182 million. This marks a new business milestone in the
development of the Group as this represents the largest contract in
terms of contract sum the Group has ever been awarded in Hong
Kong. The Group will continue to regularly and closely monitor the
progress of its on-going projects and will continue to identify suitable
tender opportunities and submit tenders for potential projects to
maximise the Group’s profits and return to its shareholders.

The total revenue of the Group decreased by approximately HK$69.4
million or 37.7% from approximately HK$184.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$114.6 million
for the Relevant Period. Gross profit of the Group increased by
approximately HK$2.6 million from approximately HK$0.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$3.1 million
for the Relevant Period.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE®ME

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2024, in the face of the aforesaid challenges and
the prevailing macroeconomic landscape, the Group holds a cautious
view on the recovery of the construction sector and the financial
results of the Group for the year ending 31 December 2024 may
potentially be impacted. Nonetheless, the Board remained dedicated
to strengthening the Group’s financial performance by bolstering up
our tendering strategies in order to secure new projects, optimising
utilisation and operational efficiency and seeking other potential
investment opportunities.

A NOTE OF APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to express
my deep gratitude to our Shareholders, clients, business partners,
suppliers and subcontractors for their continuous support. |
would also like to express our sincere appreciation to the Group’s
management and staff for their commitment, contribution and
dedication throughout the years.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Chung Chi Keung
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review and Outlook

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC system
for various types of private and public building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in Hong
Kong and Macau.

With rising geopolitical conflicts and tensions, soaring interest rate,
inflationary pressure and challenges associated with post-pandemic
economic recovery in both Mainland China and Hong Kong, the
business environment in 2023 continued to be challenging and
overall market sentiment had remained weak. During the Relevant
Period, the Group's performance has been impacted by skilled labour
shortage, high raw material and labour costs, fierce competition in
tendering process and over-run.

During the Relevant Period, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$35.9 million as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$11.2 million in the corresponding period in 2022.
The increase in the net loss was primary attributable to (i) a drop in
number of ongoing projects undertaken by the Group which were
revenue generating during the Relevant Period which drove down
the Group's revenue recognised during the Relevant Period; (ii) the
absence of the non-recurring one-off COVID-19 relief and subsidies
of approximately HK$5.6 million from the Hong Kong and Macau
governments; (iii) the write-off of contract assets of approximately
HK$11.2 million as a result of the agreement of final accounts
after negotiation with customers for three projects located at Chek
Lap Kok, Sha Tin and Taipa in Macau; and (iv) the recognition for
provision of impairment losses on trade receivables and contract
assets of approximately HK$12.2 million. Despite the increase in net
loss during the Relevant Period, the Group has stayed vigilant and
pro-active, and has succeeded in securing new projects with sizeable
contract sum. During the first half of 2023, amongst other projects,
a new project was awarded to the Group with an initial contract sum
exceeding HK$182 million. This marks a new business milestone in
the development of the Group as this represents the largest contract
in terms of contract sum the Group has ever been awarded in Hong
Kong. The Group will continue to regularly and closely monitor the
progress of its on-going projects and will continue to identify suitable
tender opportunities and submit tenders for potential projects to
maximise the Group’s profits and return to its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBIRE DM

Looking forward to 2024, in the face of the aforesaid challenges and
the prevailing macroeconomic landscape, the Group holds a cautious
view on the recovery of the construction sector and the financial
results of the Group for the year ending 31 December 2024 may
potentially be impacted. Nonetheless, the Board remained dedicated
to strengthening the Group’s financial performance by bolstering up
our tendering strategies in order to secure new projects, optimising
utilisation and operational efficiency and seeking other potential
investment opportunities.

Financial Review
Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$69.4 million, from
approximately HK$184.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately HK$114.6 million for the Relevant Period,
representing a decrease of approximately 37.7%. In particular, while
the Group recorded (i) an increase in revenue of approximately
HK$19.8 million from new projects (in particular a new project
located at Kai Tak and a new project located at Tseung Kwan
O which collectively contributed to an increase in revenue of
approximately HK$19.7 million); and (ii) an increase in revenue of
approximately HK$15.7 million due to the increase in the amount
of work under our existing projects as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2022 (in particular, a project located at Kai Tak
and a project located at Taipa in Macau), the aforesaid increments
were offset by (i) a decrease in revenue of approximately HK$46.3
million resulting from the completion of certain projects during the
Relevant Period; and (ii) a decrease in revenue of approximately
HK$58.6 million due to the decrease in the amount of work under
our existing projects as compared with the year ended 31 December
2022 (in particular, another project located at Kai Tak and another
project located at Taipa in Macau together accounted for a decrease
in revenue of approximately HK$42.2 million).

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales decreased from approximately HK$183.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$111.5
million for the Relevant Period, representing a decrease of
approximately 39.2% which was in line with the decrease in revenue
for the Relevant Period.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$2.6 million from
approximately HK$0.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately HK$3.1 million for the Relevant Period. The gross
profit margin increased from approximately 0.3% for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately 2.7% for the Relevant Period.
The increase in gross profit and gross profit margin was primarily
attributable to increase in the contribution of revenue derived from
an existing project in Kai Tak (which recorded a relatively higher
gross profit margin for the Relevant Period) to our total revenue
from approximately 31.5% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately 57.4% for the Relevant Period.

Provision of Impairment Losses on Trade Receivables and
Contract Assets, Net

Provision of impairment losses on trade receivables and contract
assets (net) of approximately HK$12.2 million was recorded in
relation to (a) the expected credit losses on the contract assets in
respect of two projects located at Taipa in Macau and one project
located in Hong Kong that have been due for at least three years
in which the Company was doubtful in recovering the contractual
cash flows and there was a high uncertainty of recovery, after taking
into account factors such as the external economic environment,
the significant increase in credit risk and the pace of the collections
of customers’ payment; and (b) impairment arising from the project
located in Macau (the “Affected Project”) as mentioned in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 March 2024. Based on
recent communication with the customer of the Affected Project
(the “Direct Customer”), the Direct Customer has obtained a final
arbitration award against the main-contractor of the Affected
Project. It is expected that upon enforcement of the final award by
the Direct Customer, it is highly probable that the Group can recover
a total sum of approximately HK$29.1 million arising from the
Affected Project from the Direct Customer. In this connection, the
Company recorded an impairment loss on contract assets in respect
of the Affected Project of approximately HK$1.3 million during the
Relevant Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBIRE DM

Write-off of Contract Assets

Write-off of contract assets of approximately HK$11.2 million
was recorded as a result of the finalisation of projects account
with customers which the Group has no reasonable expectation
of recovery on certain construction work completed by the Group
after negotiating with customers for three projects located at Chek
Lap Kok, Sha Tin and Taipa in Macau. For the project at Chek
Lap Kok, work done performed by the Group as certified by the
external surveyor amounted to approximately HK$41.3 million. After
negotiation with the customer, total work done of approximately
HK$35.3 million was reached with reference to the final account
and thus written off of contract assets in respect of the work done
of approximately HK$6.0 million was recognised during the Relevant
Period. For the project at Shatin, work done performed by the Group
as certified by the external surveyor amounted to approximately
HK$99.3 million. After negotiation with the customer, an agreement
of final account for total work done of approximately HK$94.9
million was reached and thus written off of contract assets in respect
of the work done of approximately HK$4.4 million was recognised
during the Relevant Period. For the project at Taipa in Macau, after
negotiation with the customer for the final account, contract asset
in respect of retention money of approximately HK$0.8 million was
written off.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$0.5
million, or approximately 2.8%, from approximately HK$17.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$18.4
million for the Relevant Period, mainly attributable to the increase in
the employee benefit expenses.

Income Tax Credit

Our income tax credit increased by approximately HK$1.8 million,
or approximately 69.2%, from approximately HK$2.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$4.4 million for
the Relevant Period, mainly attributable to the combined effect of
(i) the increase in the loss before tax; and (ii) the absence of the tax
credit attributable to the non-taxable subsidies received by the Group
from the Hong Kong and Macau governments for the Relevant
Period as compared with the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our loss increased by approximately
HK$24.7 million from approximately HK$11.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$35.9 million for the
Relevant Period.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$130.8 million (2022: approximately HK$186.2
million), which is financed by total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
(comprising share capital and reserves) of approximately HK$65.1
million (2022: approximately HK$84.6 million) and approximately
HK$65.7 million (2022: approximately HK$101.6 million),
respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings (including bank borrowings
and bank overdrafts) of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$38.4 million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$27.3
million as at 31 December 2023. Current ratio decreased from 2.1
times as at 31 December 2022 to approximately 1.8 times as at 31
December 2023.

The Group's borrowing and bank balances are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and there was no significant exposure to
foreign exchange rate fluctuations during the Relevant Period.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing the total
interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities by total equity at
the year-end date, increased from approximately 37.9% as at 31
December 2022 to approximately 43.2% as at 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the combined effect of (i) the decrease in the total
interest-bearing borrowings; and (ii) the decrease in total equity
resulting from the decrease in retained earnings attributable to
recording a net loss for the Relevant Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBIRE DM

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
management of the Company considers that the following are the
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the outbreak of any pandemic could adversely affect the
Group's business operations and financial performance by
potentially causing suspension of works, delay in delivery of
construction materials, increase in material and logistics costs
and other interruption to the operation of the Group;

the business of the Group relies on successful tenders and any
failure of the Group to secure tender contracts would affect
sustainability of our revenue streams and adversely affect the
operations and financial results of the Group;

erroneous or inaccurate estimation of project duration and
the costs involved for the determination of tender price may
adversely affect the profitability and financial performance of
the Group;

cost overrun, any delay in project schedule or defects of the
works of the suppliers and subcontractors of the Group could
adversely affect its operations and financial results;

reliance on major customers for a significant portion of the
Group's revenue may expose the Group to credit and liquidity
risks of such major customers and may have impact on the
Group's cash flow and financial conditions; and

reliance on key management for the Group’s operation may
subject the Group to material adverse effect on business
operation and profitability in case of departure of members
of the key management team without timely and appropriate
replacement.

Please also refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report for details of the financial risks faced by the Group
and the relevant risk management measures.
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Relationship with customers, suppliers, subcontractors and
employees

Customers

The Group’s customers mainly include main contractors and
subcontractors of various types of building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in Hong
Kong and Macau. The Group has maintained business relationship
with the top customers for a period ranging from approximately
1 year to over 10 years. The Directors believe the Group has
established good relationship with its customers and receives
invitations from the repeat customers to submit tenders from time to
time.

Suppliers and Subcontractors

During the Relevant Period, the suppliers and subcontractors of
the Group included (i) suppliers of air conditioning equipment
and materials; (i) suppliers of processing services on the Group's
equipment and materials; (iii) machinery rental service providers; and
(iv) subcontractors engaged by the Group to perform the site works.
The Group engaged the suppliers and subcontractors on a regular
basis.

The Group maintains an internal list of approved suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group selects suppliers based on a number
of factors such as their prices, quality of the goods and services
supplied, past performances and timeliness of delivery. While
engaging subcontractors, the Group selects the subcontractors
for a project by taking into account their availability of resources
and manpower, experience, track record, service quality, safety
performance, timeliness of delivery, reputation and fee quotations.

The Group did not encounter any material difficulty in sourcing
equipment and materials and services from our suppliers or assigning
subcontractors during the Relevant Period.

Employees

The Group respects its employees and endeavours to provide
better working conditions for its employees. We offer competitive
remuneration and a fair, flexible and transparent recruitment process
to attract and retain talents and promotes equal opportunities
among employees. Further details can also be found in section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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Capital Structure

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 27 February 2018 (the “Listing”).
Immediately upon Listing, the total issued share capital of the
Company was HK$5,740,000 divided into 574,000,000 Shares of
par value of HK$0.01 each.

On 19 November 2021, 75,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01
each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$0.144 by
way of placing under general mandate (the “Placing”). For
further information in relation to the Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 22 October 2021, 12
November 2021 and 19 November 2021.

On 21 January 2022, every four (4) issued and unissued existing
shares of the Company of par value HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company were consolidated into one (1) consolidated
share of par value HK$0.04 each in the share capital of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's issued share capital was
HK$6,490,000 (31 December 2022: HK$6,490,000) divided into
162,250,000 (31 December 2022: 162,250,000) ordinary Shares of
par value of HK$0.04 (31 December 2022: HK$0.04) each.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
capital commitments contracted but not provided for.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December
2023.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

During the Relevant Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Litigation

As disclosed in the 2022 annual report (for more details, please
refer to the management discussion and analysis section headed
“Litigation”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company was
involved in a legal proceeding. Court hearings were held on 4
September 2023, 15 September 2023 and 13 October 2023. No
judgment has been handed down as at the date of this report. The
Company will keep its shareholders and investors informed of any
material development in the Litigation.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 26 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022, the Group did not have other material contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group's revenue generating operations are mainly transacted
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) and Macau Pataca (“MOP"). The
Directors consider the impact of foreign exchange exposure to the
Group is minimal and the Group did not engage in any derivatives
agreements nor commit to any financial instrument to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure during the Relevant Period.
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Pledge of Assets

Save for the pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 18 of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December
2023 and 2022, the Group did not have other pledge of assets.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 165 (31
December 2022: 230) employees, of whom 120 (31 December
2022: 170) were labour workers nominated by subcontractors. The
decrease in the number of employees was mainly attributable to the
decrease of labour workers nominated by subcontractors resulting
from the substantial completion of certain sizable projects and the
decrease in the number of projects on hand as at 31 December
2023. The relevant cost of employing the labour workers nominated
by subcontractors was classified as subcontracting charges and the
staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were
approximately HK$22.7 million for the Relevant Period (2022:
approximately HK$27.2 million).

The Group promotes individuals based on their performance and
development potential in the positions held. In order to attract
and retain high quality staff, competitive remuneration package is
offered to employees (with reference to market norms and individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience). On top of
basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff benefits
include provision of retirement benefits, medical benefits and
sponsorship of training courses.

Events after the Reporting Period

No significant events have taken place subsequent to 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term success
and continuing development of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures,
so as to enhance the accountability system and transparency of
the Group, protect the interests of the Company’s stakeholders
and create value for shareholders of the Company. The discussion
and analysis of the group’s performance has been set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 16 of this
annual report.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Throughout the Relevant Period, the Company
has adopted and complied with, where applicable, the CG Code
to ensure that the Group’s business activities and decision-making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner, except for
Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chung Chi Keung
("Mr. Chung”) is currently the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company, responsible for formulating
the overall business strategies and overseeing the business and
operation of the Group. Considering that Mr. Chung has been
responsible for the overall management and operation of the Group
since its inception, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Chung taking up both roles for effective
management and business development.
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CULTURE

The Board believes that a healthy corporate culture underpins the
long-term business, economic success and sustainable growth of the
Group. A strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term
sustainable performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate
citizen. The Company is committed to developing a positive and
progressive culture that is built on its purpose, vision, mission and
values. The followings are the key features of the Company’s culture:

Integrity

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities and
operations. The Directors, management and staff are all required to
act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the required standards
and norms are explicitly set out in the training materials for all new
staff and embedded in various policies such as the Group’s employee
handbook (including therein the Group's code of conduct), the
anticorruption policy and the whistleblowing policy of the Group.

Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to workforce
development, workplace safety and health, diversity, and
sustainability is one where people have a feeling of commitment
and emotional engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets the
tone for a strong, productive workforce that attracts, develops,
and retains the best talent and produces the highest quality work.
Moreover, the Company’s strategy in the business development
and management are to achieve long-term, steady and sustainable
growth, while having due considerations from environment, social
and governance aspects.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and
requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are
required to attend orientation and training programs so that they
may better understand our corporate culture, structure and policies,
learn relevant laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness.
In addition, from time to time, the Company will invite external
experts to provide training to our management personnel to improve
their relevant knowledge and management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose,
values and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
of the Group, formulating the Group’s overall strategic direction and
corporate governance and maintaining appropriate levels of review,
challenge and guidance in its relationship with the management.
The management is delegated with the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the day-to-day management and administration of
the Group.

The Board is provided with the updates from management to give
a balanced and understandable assessment of the performance,
recent development and prospects of the Group on a regular basis.
The Board is the ultimate decision-making body for all matters
material to the Group and discharges its responsibilities on corporate
governance either by itself or the Board Committees set out in Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which include the following:

1.  to develop and review the policies and practice on corporate
governance of the Group and make recommendations;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the Directors and employees;
and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.
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Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “INED") as set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 58 to 63 of
this annual report.

In compliance with Rules 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three INEDs representing not
less than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Board, through the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”), has assessed and considered the INEDs
to be independent during the Relevant Period in accordance with
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of our INEDs. Furthermore, all Board Committees
including the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) has free and direct access to the Company’s external
auditor or independent professional adviser(s) when they consider
necessary.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there are no other relationship
(including financial business, family, and other material/relevant
relationships) among the members of the Board as of the date of
this report.
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Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is key to
good corporate governance. The Company has in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board and that
independent views are available.

The current composition of the Board, comprising more than one
third of the Board being INEDs, and the members of the Audit
Committee are all INEDs exceed the independence requirements
under the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee are all chaired by INEDs. The
remuneration of INEDs are subject to a regular review to maintain
competitiveness and commensurate with their responsibilities and
workload. The independence of each INED is assessed upon his
appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at the Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate.
External independent professional advice is available to all Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, whenever deemed
necessary. The INEDs have consistently demonstrated strong
commitment and the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge
their responsibilities at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and
informal means whereby INEDs can express their views in an open
manner, and in a confidential manner, should circumstances
requires.

The Company has reviewed the implementation of the mechanisms
in relation to the Board Independence and considered it to be
effective during the Relevant Period.
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Board Diversity

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having skills, experience and expertise complementing the business
operations and development of the Group and from a variety
of backgrounds. There is diversity of education, professional
background, functional expertise, gender, age, culture and industrial
experience.
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(As at 31 December 2023)

The Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation.

A Board Diversity Policy of the Company was adopted in preparation
for the Listing and amended in December 2018 and March 2024
by the Board. The said Policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity at Board level and the factors (including but not limited
to skills, regional and industry experience, professional experience,
background, education, race, gender, age, culture and other
qualities, etc.) to be considered in determining the composition of
the Board so as to ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to
support the execution of its business strategy and to maximise the
Board’s effectiveness.

During the Relevant Period, the Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and is satisfied that
the Board Diversity Policy has been properly implemented during
2023 and is effective.
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Workforce diversity

The gender ratio of male to female in the workforce (including senior
management) for the Relevant Period is 142:23. Building service
industry has generally been short of female talents due to social and
culture traditions. The total gender diversity of the Group is balanced
and the Group will continue to maintain the gender diversity in
workforce. For further details of gender ratio and initiatives taken
to improve gender diversity together with the relevant data, please
refer to the disclosure in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.

Board Process and Meetings

The Board meets regularly to determine overall strategies, receive
management updates, approve business plans as well as financial
results and to consider other significant matters to the Group.
Management also provides updates to the Board with respect to the
business activities and development of the Group on a regular basis.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the
Group’s development through their constructive and informed
comments. All of the members of the Board have also disclosed and
updated their number and nature of offices held and time involved
in handling the matters of the Company on a regular basis.

During the Relevant Period, the Board had held four meetings to
approve, among other things, matters relating to the quarterly,
interim and annual financial results, the scope of services and related
fees to the external auditors and to review the business strategies
and consider the reports from each Board Committee. The Board
also considered and approved various matters, among other things,
including the engagement of consultant to internal control function.
The Directors’ attendance records of the Board meetings held during
the Relevant Period are set out below. An annual general meeting
("AGM") and a private meeting between the Chairman and the
INEDs as required by Code C.2.7 of the CG Code had been held
during the Relevant Period.
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Members of the Board EEEgHE
Attendance of Board and Committee Meeting, Annual General RIEBHEHEEFERZEESHE KRE
Meeting and Training during the Relevant Period BFEAERIZIEL
No. of
No. of Audit ~ Remuneration No. of Nomination
No. of Board Committee Committee Committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings  Annual General
attended/eligible ~attended/eligible attended/eligible attended/eligible Meeting
Name of Directors to attend to attend to attend toattend (14 June 2023) Training "¢’
BHiE/ BHiE/ BdR/ EiiE/ L
RERILR RERLEE  RERLEER RERLE AErE
Ezeg BhzEe  MzEeER RtzEe (-B==%
- £3:2] 8 EE Ve | EE VL AATEA) Rl
Executive Directors #iEs
Mr. Chung Chi Keung ERp 44 N/A 1 71 v v
A
Ms. Lai Suk Fun BhAat 44 NIA NIA NIA v v
EH NER AR
Independent Non-executive Buk4fES
Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric BRELE 44 44 1 N/A v v
oyl
. Lei For iyt 44 44 NIA 1l /o2 v
NER {eZ
Mr. Lai Wai Ming RENtE 34 44 n N ki v
Notes: Biet -

(1) This includes attending briefings, seminars, conferences, forum
relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities, the Group’s
business, development, strategies, etc. arranged by the Company or
external organisations or reading regulatory/corporate governance
updates.

(2)  Attended the AGM via tele-conference.
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Terms of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service
agreement, and each of the INEDs signed a letter of appointment
with, the Company. Both the said service agreements and letters of
appointment are for a term of three years from 27 February 2018,
being the date on which the Shares are listed on GEM, subject to
further renewal and re-election in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company, as amended from time to time, (the
“Articles”) and termination in accordance with their respective
terms. The service agreement of each executive Director and the
letter of appointment of each INED have been renewed for another
term of 3 years commencing from 27 February 2024 on the same
terms and conditions.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election
at that meeting pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles.

As such, Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric (“Mr. Choy"”) and Mr. Lei For (“Mr.
Lei”) will retire from office as Directors and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company which is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 6 June 2024 in
accordance with the Articles and relevant code provision under the
CG Code.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on the terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealing set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific
enquiry of all the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of securities dealings regarding
transactions during the Relevant Period. The Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of dealings
regarding securities transactions by the Directors during the Relevant
Period.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Group acknowledges the importance of continuing professional
development for the Directors to extend and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
developments of the Company.

The Directors are fully aware of the requirement under the Code
Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code regarding professional development.
During the Relevant Period, the Company had provided and
circulated regulatory updates and training materials to the Directors
from time to time to ensure that all Directors keep abreast of the
latest development in the regulatory areas relating to the Group.
All Directors and provided their training records during the Relevant
Period to the Company. Details of the training records are set out on
page 24 of this annual report.

Board Committees

The Board established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
by resolutions of Directors passed on 31 January 2018, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. All Board committees were
established with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant code provisions of the CG Code, which are available at the
Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (www.wingfunggroup.com).
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 31 January 2018. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three members, namely Mr.
Choy, Mr. Lei and Mr. Lai Wai Ming (“Mr. Lai”), all of whom are our
INEDs. Mr. Choy is the chairman of the Audit Committee, who holds
the appropriate professional qualifications as required under Rules
5.05(2) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment and removal of external auditor; review financial
statements/information of the Company and judgments in respect
of financial reporting; oversee the effectiveness of the procedures of
the internal control procedures and risk management of the Group;
and review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Four Audit Committee meetings were held during the Relevant
Period. Details of the attendance records of each Audit Committee’s
member are set out on page 24 of this annual report. During
the said meetings, the Audit Committee had reviewed and made
recommendations on various matters including the annual, interim
and quarterly financial results and the respective financial reporting
of the Group, status on the internal control, financial control and
risk management, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, discussed with the
management and the external auditor on the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, the auditor’'s independence
status of, audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor
and re-appointment of the external auditor. The Committee also
reviewed and made recommendation to the Board regarding the
engagement of consultant to the internal control function and
change of auditor during the Relevant Period. More information
about the internal control and risk management can be found on
pages 31 to 33 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Relevant Period and was of
the opinion that the said audited consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee members also met
the external auditor in the absence of the executive Directors and
management to discuss the audit related matters.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 31 January 2018. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members and is chaired
by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs in accordance with the
requirements under Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. This includes
Mr. Lai who is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Mr. Choy, both of whom are our INEDs, and our executive Director,
Mr. Chung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors, senior management and
general staff of the Group assessing the performance of executive
Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts and to ensure that none of the Directors or any their
associates determine their own remuneration.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Relevant
Period to review the remuneration structure of the Directors.
Details of the attendance records of each Remuneration Committee
members are set out on page 24 of this annual report.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

A directors’ remuneration policy has been adopted. It aims to set out
the Company’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors.

The directors’ remuneration policy sets out the remuneration
structure that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain
qualified Directors who can manage and lead the Company in
achieving its strategic objective and contribute to the Company’s
performance and sustainable growth, and to provide Directors with a
balanced and competitive remuneration. The remuneration policy is,
therefore, aiming at being competitive but not excessive. To achieve
this, remuneration package is determined with reference to a matrix
of factors, including the individual performance, qualification and
experience of Directors concerned and prevailing industry practice.
It will be reviewed and, if necessary, updated from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Directors and Senior Management’s Remuneration

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Relevant Period are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5. of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report
for the Relevant Period by band is set out below.
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Nomination Committee REZEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 31 January 2018.
The Nomination Committee consists of three members and is chaired
by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs in accordance with
the requirements under Rule 5.36A of the GEM Listing Rule. This
includes Mr. Lei who is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Mr. Lai, both of whom are our INEDs, and our executive
Director, Mr. Chung.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually by reference
to the factors as set out in the Diversity Policy, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members; assess independence
of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment and
reappointment of Directors with reference to the Nomination Policy.
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To enhance the nomination process for a director candidate, a
Nomination Policy was adopted as a guidance on the selection
process and board succession planning. The Nomination Committee
utilises various methods for identifying director candidates, including
recommendations from the Board members, management, and
professional search firms and may review of resume and job history,
conduct personal interviews and verification of professional and
personal references or perform the background checks, etc. On
evaluation of the director candidates including incumbents and
candidates nominated by the Shareholders, the Board and the
Nomination Committee will take into account whether a candidate
has the qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc.
that can add to and complement the range of skills, experience and
background of the existing Directors and may consider the following
qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new Director, or
the continued service of existing Director:

o the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

o proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment; skills that
are complementary to those of the existing Board;

o the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

o an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is
required of a member of the Board and the commitment
of time and energy necessary to diligently carry out those
responsibilities; and

o independence as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board by reference to the criteria as mentioned above, assess the
independence of the INEDs and make recommendation on the
re-election of the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 14 June 2023.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy and its implementation can be
found on page 22 of this annual report. Details of the attendance
records of each Nomination Committee member are set out on page
24 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Pak Hin Edward (“Mr. Law"”) was appointed as Company
Secretary of the Company on 14 February 2017. Please refer to the
section “Biographical details of Directors and Senior Management”
for his biographical information.

During the Relevant Period, Mr. Law undertook more than 15 hours
of professional training as required by the Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules to update his skills and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements which give a true
and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
should be selected and applied consistently.

The statement of external auditor about its reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 77 to 84 of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Board recognise the importance of good
internal control procedures including the procedures for handling
and dissemination of inside information and its effectiveness in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests. The Group has strictly
prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside information or
any use of such information for the advantage of any individual. The
Board also acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and discharges its responsibilities to
oversee management in design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control system and its
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminating the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee will review of the
Company'’s financial controls, risk management and internal control
system and its effectiveness and report to the Board on a regular
basis and at least annually.
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The Group also established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group’s risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry and
market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and senior
management are responsible for identifying the analysing the risk
associated with their respective function, preparing and measuring
risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk management.
More information about the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group can be found on page 12 of this annual report.

The Group has maintained internal control guidance covering the
Group’s operation processes relating to subcontract, purchase and
expenditure and human resources, etc. and overseen their operations
by the senior management. In view of the size and business nature
of the Group, the Company does not establish a standalone internal
audit function but has engaged an external independent consultant
to review and assess our internal control systems (including financial,
operational and management systems, compliance and governance
matters) during the Relevant Period. No material internal control
deficiency was identified by the external consultant and the Group's
management had worked with the external consultant to enhance
the Group’s internal control system.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. The external internal control consultant
also reported to the Audit Committee on their factual findings and
recommendation for improvements on our internal control systems
over the above-mentioned processes and procedures.

The Group has implemented the necessary internal control measures
based on the recommendation of the external internal control
consultant. The external internal control consultant confirmed such
modified and new internal control procedures are satisfactorily
implemented upon the conduct of follow-up review. The Audit
Committee was satisfied and considers that the Group’s risk
management and internal control procedures are sufficient to meet
the Company’s needs in its current business environment and in
terms of practicability.

Hence, the Group considers its risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to preventing, detecting, and reporting
to any levels of bribery and corruption. The Anti-Corruption Policy
was adopted in August 2022 to provide principles for all directors,
officers, and employees to operate conduct business with integrity
and to reduce the risk of corruption and bribery. The Group conducts
periodic and systematic fraud risk assessments to mitigate fraud risks
identified internally and externally. Proper trainings and briefings
related to bribery, corruption, conflicts of interest, money laundering
and financing of terrorism, non-compliance with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance will also be provided to all employees.

Whistleblowing

A Whistleblowing Policy was adopted in August 2022 to provide
guidance on the procedure of reporting allegations of any fraud
and misconduct, malpractice or irregularity by employees and
stakeholders. All filed whistleblowing reports and the identity of
the whistleblowers are treated in a strictly confidential manner in
accordance with the procedures set out in the policy. The matter
raised may be investigated internally and referred to the Board, or be
referred to external lawyers or auditors.

Once the investigation is completed, a report including the impact
of the matter reported and an action plan will be prepared by
the Audit Committee. Disciplinary and other appropriate actions
will be determined by the responsible line management while
recommendations will be made by the Audit Committee for the
Board’s final decision on the actions required.

No incident of fraud or misconduct that has material effect on the
Group’s financial statements or overall operations was reported
during the Relevant Period. The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed
annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its effectiveness.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy as a guidance on the
payment of the dividend. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into
account the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance,
cashflows, financial condition, future prospects, as well as statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends, and other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board will review
from time to time the above factors in determining any dividend
proposal, there can be no assurance that dividends will be declared
or paid in any particular amount for any given period.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) is the external auditor of the
Company which was appointed by the Board on 29 October 2021
following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") on
the same date.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the resignation, appointment or re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, which is subject to the approval
by the Board and/or at the general meetings of the Company by
its shareholders. The Audit Committee would consider various
factors including the independence, experience and qualification
of auditor, their fee, terms of engagement and staffing plan
for recommendation to the Board for the appointment or re-
appointment of the auditor of the Company.

For the Relevant Period, the fee paid or payable in respect of the
statutory audit services and non-audit services of the Group are as
follows:
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

General Meeting

As one of the measures to safeqguard the Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at Shareholders’
meeting on each substantial issue including the re-election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at the Shareholders’
meeting will be conducted by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules
and the poll voting results will be published on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.com) and the Company’s website
(www.wingfunggroup.com). During the Relevant Period, an AGM of
the Company was held on 14 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM") to seek
the Shareholders’ approval on, among other things, the granting the
general mandates to issue and repurchase the Company’s shares and
re-election of the Directors. The Board member’s attendance record
is set out in page 24 to this annual report.

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 6 June
2024 and notice of the meeting will be sent to the Shareholders in
accordance with the relevant requirements under the Articles.

Procedures and Right for Shareholders to Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") are subject to the
Articles, and the applicable legislation and regulation, in particular
the GEM Listing Rules:

1. If any one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at the
general meetings of the Company, such Shareholder(s) may
submit a written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within three (3) months after the deposit of such requisition.
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2. The Board should within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be
held within a further 21 days. If the Board fails to do so,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may also make reference to Article 12 of the Articles.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above procedures
may write to the company secretary of the Company at Unit D,
21/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director of the Company

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with the appointment or
election of Director(s), wishes to propose a person for election as
a Director at that meeting, he/she may lodge a written notice at
the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit D,
21/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary of
the Company. Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director of the Company can be found on
the Company’s website (www.wingfunggroup.com).

Procedure for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at Shareholders’ meeting under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in
accordance with the “Procedures and Rights for Shareholders to
Convene Extraordinary General Meeting” set out above.
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Investors Relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders through various channels
including general meetings and corporate communications such as
announcements, quarterly, interim and annual reports and circulars.
Latest information of the Group is also available on the Company’s
website.

The Company has adopted its Shareholders’ communications
policy. Enquiries and proposals from Shareholders, investors and all
stakeholders are welcomed. Enquires to the Board or the Company
may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit D, 21/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Such written enquires
or proposal with full name, contact details and identification must
deposit and send to said address.

Any enquires in relation to the Company’s shareholdings, share
transfer or registration may contact the Company’s share registrar.
Their contact details are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between Itself and Its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other
announcements; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated and
key information of the Group available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv) the Company’s website
offering communication channel between the Company and its
stakeholders; (v) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong serving
the Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and
(vi) attending meetings with analysts, which led by our executive
Directors with existing and potential investors.

The Company held its 2023 AGM on 14 June 2023, which was
attended by shareholders, including their proxies or representatives,
and shares voted represent 52.67% of the total issued shares of the
Company. All resolutions proposed at the 2023 AGM were passed.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
shareholders engagement in the general meeting held during the
year, the Board is satisfied that the shareholders communication
policy has been properly implemented during 2023 and is effective.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company first adopted its memorandum and articles of
association on 29 September 2016. The Company adopted the
second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
Association on 14 June 2023. Save as disclosed, there had been
no change to the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Relevant Period. The latest version of the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company is available at the Company’s website
and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The objective of this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance for the purpose
of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group’s ESG
concepts and practices to achieve sustainable development for the
future.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and Macau during the
Relevant Period, relating to the overall performance, risks, strategies,
measures and commitments in four aspects: quality of the working
environment, environmental protection, operating practices and
community participation.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix C2 of the GEM
Listing Rules. An assessment of the applicability and materiality of
the relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”) under the ESG
Reporting Guide was conducted.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The following principles are adopted in the Report:

o Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in the Report. A materiality
assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues
with results approved by the Board.

o Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and
assumptions used to prepare the quantitative information is
disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided
with narrative and comparative figures, where possible.

o Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in the Report, unless otherwise specified,
to allow for meaningful comparisons.

o Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. It is responsible for evaluating and determining
the Group’s ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are in
place. The management is responsible for effectively coordinating
the application of the Group’s environment, employment, and
service quality assurance policies.

The Board leads and provides direction to management by instituting
ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their implementation and
monitoring ESG performance. The Board regularly reviews ESG
affairs, including environmental protection, employment and labour
practices, operating practices, and community investment, and
implements appropriate measures to enhance the ESG performance
of the Group. The Board continues to explore ways to further
strengthen the ESG governance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

As the Group strives for excellence, stakeholders’ feedback is
appreciated, especially on topics listed as the highest importance in
the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with us at
http://wingfunggroup.com/contact.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group actively engages with stakeholders to identify ESG issues
that need to be addressed. Stakeholder engagement is the process
by which an organisation involves parties who may be affected by
the decision it makes or can influence the implementation of its
decisions.

The Management had performed the following:

o generated a full and complete list of stakeholders by consulting
various departments within the Group;

o relied on the on-going communication channels and day-to-
day interactions and dedicated meetings (whenever deemed
necessary) to engage these stakeholders; and

o reduced the list of stakeholders to a workable size and
completed the Stakeholder Influence — Dependency Matrix to
identify a list of key stakeholders.
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Shareholders and investors ° Return on investments
o Corporate governance
° Sustainable development
o Compliance with laws and
regulations
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o Information disclosed on the HKEX
website and corporate website

o Annual general meeting and other
shareholders’ meetings
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Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns Communication channels
O B2 N EE BBRE
Employees Employees’ compensation and Employee performance evaluation
benefits On-the-job training
Career development Internal e-mail
Occupational safety and health Regular meetings
(== 1B B % B R As A B 8 RI[FE
BEER FEBIE )
BEZENEE M EPE I
EHigE
Suppliers Fulfilment of promises Supplier selection assessment
Credit worthiness Suppliers’ performance assessment
Supplier meetings
Site visits
HrEm BITHEGE HrEm BN
=8 HrEm KRBT G
HreEmes
BihZER
Customers High-quality products and services Corporate website
Protection of customer rights and Emails and phone communications
personal data
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Community/Public

Compliance with laws and
regulations

Involvement in communities
Environmental protection awareness

Industry events
Corporate social responsibility
activities
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Relevant Period, the Group has evaluated a number
of environmental, social and operating items and assessed their
importance to stakeholders and the Group through various channels.
This assessment helps ensure that the Group’s business objectives
and development direction align with stakeholders’ expectations
and requirements. The matters of concern for both the Group and
stakeholders are listed in the following materiality matrix:
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Twenty-one ESG issues were identified where they mattered the
most to the Group’s businesses and stakeholders. The relevance/
importance of each of the ESG issues was assessed and scored
according to their views on a scale of 0 to 10 (0 is irrelevant and 10
is crucial). The ESG issues that fall within the top right-hand quadrant
are of the greatest importance.
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Aspects Major concerns
Environment 1 Air emission

2 Greenhouse gas emission

3 Wastes production

4. Natural resources consumption
5 Use of packaging materials

6 Impact to the environment

7 Climate change

Employment 8. Labour practices

9. Employee remuneration and benefits
10. Occupational safety and health
11. Employee development and training

Supply Chain 12.  Green procurement
Management 13. Engagement with suppliers
14. Environmental and social risk management of
supply chain

Product 15.  Product/service quality and safety
Responsibility 16. Customer privacy and data security
17.  Marketing and promotion
18. Intellectual property rights

Anti-corruption  19.  Business ethics & anti-corruption
20. Internal grievance mechanism

Community 21. Participation in philanthropy

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group does not have any factory operations nor engage in any
activities that have a substantial effect on the environment, aside
from the consumption of resources by the office administrative
operations. Nevertheless, the Group pays due consideration and
effort towards compliance with applicable laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and Macau, and actively cooperates with the
main contractor to meet environmental protection requirements.
The majority of the Group’s work is conducted through its
subcontractors. As part of project delivery, the project team
confirms construction quality and also monitors the environmental
performance of its subcontractors. One of the measures includes
regular checks to ensure that environmental protection requirements
imposed on various parties, including the main contractor, the
construction site, and the Group, are met.
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Emissions

As a subcontractor for the provision of supply, installation and
fitting-out services of MVAC systems for buildings in Hong Kong
and Macau, the installation activity does not cause any material
emissions or pollution generated from the Company’s operations at
construction sites.

In order to minimise the production of air pollutants from motor
vehicles, the Group promotes the use of public transport and
carpooling.

RE HEREBHRS
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Air emissions Unit 2023 2022
REENRE By —E-= =R==¢3
Nitrogen oxides g 947 1,640
=) I

Sulphur oxides g 14 24
mealy I

Respiratory suspended particles g 70 121
ARABTH T A%

Greenhouse gas emissions Unit 2023 2022
B E R EBHER By —EF-= —E_CF
Scope 1 — petrol consumption Tonne 23 4.0
FE - AREREE NI

Scope 2 — electricity consumption Tonne 13.2 10.5
F2E-HEE NI

Total emissions Tonne 15.5 14.5
Mo E NI

Emission intensity Tonne per million dollars of revenue 0.14 0.08
B E NME/ B & T

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste BERBEZEZEY

The major source of waste comes from construction works, whereby EEZEWH T B RREREE TR - MAS%E

the Group abides by the regulations imposed by the main contractor
and the respective site. The staff and work team follow on-site
regulations on waste disposal and always inquire with the project
management team when encountering any difficulties.

Although the operation does not involve handling hazardous waste
directly, we establish policies and guidelines for both our staff and
subcontractors. For example, hazardous waste is stored separately
in special containers before being collected by a licensed chemical
waste collector.
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Waste production is mainly attributed to the discarded packaging
materials and domestic office waste. The Group’s operation does not
involve the production of hazardous waste. All materials and waste
disposed of at the worksites are collected by authorised collectors
appointed by the local government. During the Relevant Period, the
Group did not notice any non-compliance issues regarding waste
disposal.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The project team also ensures compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary regulations, particularly the
Waste Disposal (Charges for Disposal of Construction Waste) and
the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations. During
the Relevant Period, the Group strictly abided by the laws and
regulations mentioned above.

Use of resources

Driven by the belief in maintaining sustainability, the Group strives to
ensure the efficient use of resources, including energy, materials and
auxiliary materials. It is the Group’s policy that materials ordered are
‘just right’ for the intended project, and the Group endeavours to
use excess materials to reduce wastage.
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Intensity (per million

Resources utilisation Unit Consumption dollars of revenue)
BERERA By HEE ZE(BEBETWR)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=-= T —EBE=F T
Electricity kWh 21,641 27,002 189 147
Bh Tk
Unleaded petrol L 845 1,464 7 8
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The Group has implemented the following schemes to reduce the
consumption of energy and natural resources:

o encourage duplex printing and reuse single-side printed paper;

o switch off idle electrical appliances;

o perform regular maintenance and repair on electrical
appliances to lower energy waste;

o reduce the use of disposable and non-recyclable products; and

o conduct regular maintenance and inspection of company
vehicles.

Packaging materials

As the operation of the Group does not produce any tangible
products that require packaging during the Relevant Period, hence
no packaging materials were used in this regard.

Water

During the Relevant Period, our offices in both Hong Kong and
Macau lacked individual water supply systems (e.g. tap and toilet
facilities), resulting in the unavailability of information regarding
water consumption.

There were no issues encountered in sourcing water that met the
required standards and purposes.

Environmental and natural resources

There are several environmental concerns that are particularly
relevant, affecting the materials and services used by the Group. For
instance, air conditioning, refrigeration and heat pump technologies
are increasingly shifting towards more environmentally friendly
refrigerant gases with lower ozone depletion potential and lower
global warming potential. The Group is determined to stay abreast
of developments in resources and technologies that benefit the
environment, especially with the higher requirements imposed on
MVAC equipment and the installation process.
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In delivering the works, the project team ensures that all services
are conducted in an environmentally responsible manner and strictly
adhere to applicable laws in Hong Kong and Macau, such as the
Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 40 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Several other specific regulations directly related to the operations,
including the requirement of using lead-free solders for copper
pipes in freshwater Inside Services, are specified in the standards
as stipulated in the Waterworks Regulations. Another regulation
that the Group complies with is the VOC regulation imposed by
the Environmental Protection Department. VOCs (volatile organic
compounds) are found in a wide variety of everyday products such
as solvent-based paints/coatings, adhesives, sealants, printing inks,
many consumer products, organic solvents and petroleum products.

Climate Change

Action on climate change is embedded in the Group’s business
strategy and reflected in its governance and management processes.
The table below outlines where to find the core elements of how the
Group responds to the climate change disclosure requirements in
this Report.

Core element Our response

Governance o Setup ESG Working Group and regular

meeting
o Integrate ESG topics (including climate-

related issues) in corporate decision
making

Strategy o Understand climate risks and identify
risk and opportunities in low-carbon
transition

Risk Management o Prepare for the transition to a low-

carbon economy
o Establish measures to address physical
climate risks
Targets o Maintaining the GHG emission intensity
at below 0.1 tonne per million of
revenue for the next 5 years
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SOCIAL

Employment

The Group promotes equal opportunity and opposes any form of
discrimination in the hiring process. Personal attributes such as race,
religion, nationality, age, or gender are not considered in the hiring
process. In addition to discrimination, any act of sexual harassment
is strictly prohibited. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had
5 directors and 160 employees, including 138 labour workers
nominated by subcontractors. The table below shows the details of
our workforce distribution:

RE HEREBHRS

e
1%

AEBEREFEHE  ARHHEBREHRT
AR - Bk~ R - B - F
BRI EEAR XL T ABERF B
ERZH o BT EAIN - RPIEREELIEER
MRETA HE_ZT-_=F+-A=+—
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1 :

No. of staff
BT A
Gender ey
Male S 142
Female M 23
Age Group F 485
19-40 195X 2 405% 63
41-60 A RE 608K 87
61 or above 615%3k A £ 15
Geographical region il 3 5%
Macau R 14
Hong Kong ' 151
Employment type 1E1EER
Full-time 2H 163
Part-time FEH 2

The Group welcomes individuals of all age ranges to join, as long as
they are eager to learn and participate. While the Group considers
all applications regardless of gender, the majority of successful
applicants are typically male due to the labour-intensive nature of
most operations at construction sites.

REEBELEZENR2E  AKEELT
RIFHRENALINA - BEAEETHwIER
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The Group aims to maintain an acceptable level of employee
turnover to facilitate the accumulation of professional skills and
experience. In the year 2023, the permanent staff turnover rate
was approximately 3%, categorised by gender, age group, and
geographical location as follows:

AEEEERE TREBERER AR ERIAK
FoAREEERERERNEBER - N _-F
—=F REEIRFEROA/3I% @ KR -
Fe/l R M IEME S RWAT ¢

Gender Age group Geographical location
14 5Bl FiAa 5l 32 ih @
Male Female 19-40 41-60 61 or above Hong Kong Macau
E=1e3 7t 195 E405% 4152605 61 L BB i
3% B 4% 2% - 3% -
Compensation and dismissal H1E R E

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain
talented staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically to ensure consistency with the employment market.
Laws and regulations on minimum wage and statutory social
benefits are required to be followed. Dismissal is required to comply
with employment laws and regulations, as well as internal policies
and procedures, including policies preventing dismissal based solely
on employees’ gender, marital status, pregnancy, disability, age, or
family status.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent
recruitment strategy. The recruitment process includes the application
submission, position description, collection of job applications,
interviews, selection, approval, and job offers. Promotion is based on
performance and suitability.

Working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare

Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits, and welfare,
including social security benefits, mandatory provident fund and
labour pension, are required to comply with employment or labour
laws and regulations. Selected benefit programs, including medical
coverage, are also provided.
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Equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group endeavours
to provide a fair workplace for employees and follow the principles
of equality and non-discrimination. Recruitment, remuneration,
promotion, and benefits are required to be handled based on
objective assessment, equal opportunity and non-discrimination
regardless of gender, race, age, or other measures of diversity.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the Relevant Period, the Group strictly abided by laws and
regulations related to employment, including but not limited to the
following:

Hong Kong e Employment Ordinance
o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
o Minimum wage Ordinance
o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
o Sex Discrimination Ordinance
o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
o Race Discrimination Ordinance
o Disability Discrimination Ordinance
o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour

Macau . Labour Relations Law

Health and safety

The Group is committed to strict compliance with all relevant health
and safety legislation. Although the works carried out by the Group
and its subcontractors do not involve heavy machinery or manual
handling of hazardous materials, the staff teams are exposed to
relatively higher health and safety risks. The project management
team is committed to conducting ongoing risk assessments to
identify and manage these risks, with the objective of achieving the
goal of zero accidents.
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In most cases, the main contractor or the management of the
construction site would have already developed and deployed sets
of site safety plans and instructions to the staff teams, requiring
compliance by all subcontractors. The Group’s management works
to ensure that subcontractors strictly observe these safety plans
and directives. Safety instructions for different operations are well-
communicated to the employees.

In accordance with the safety requirements of the Labour
Department and the main contractor, we provide the site staff
with qualified safety equipment, including safety helmets, goggles,
and other necessary safety precautions to ensure the occupational
safety of the staff. Personal protective equipment specific to the
type of work being performed is made available and distributed.
The site foremen are responsible for ensuring the proper use and
maintenance of the equipment. The Group extends considerations
and assessments to subcontractors, and the project team maintains
close communication to provide the staff and subcontractors with
the latest safety information.

Safety is given the highest priority by the Group. The Group will
regularly conduct safety trainings to the employees to promote
strong safety awareness. Additionally, investigations are carried out
after every incident, and recommendations or corrective actions are
taken if necessary. Management will continue to maintain constant
communication with field operations. Going forward, the Group
will reinforce efforts to strive towards the ultimate objective of zero
accidents and a zero-injury rate during operations.

REBER  BARPBREEHBNEIEE
FEHIERMETEBKREMBEL2HRIR
ol MESBERLAEST AEEEHE
EYNERDEEBRETZEFLEMRE R
5l - TEEENLZ2ESIGREERRESR
o

RESTRIEARBNZEZRTE - RMAR
WBRETRHAERLERE BEL:E
g EERLREMAFTLE2RGEE - BR
BETWMRBERSE - RAITFREMRIRE HE
ERRITIENEARERE - HWBTBEES
BREGBEZSNRALRE - AKENEE
EHfEEREDERE - MEAREGKERER
BEURHENLE2EAMTEIRDBHE -

AEERLEWES L - NAEBETERY
BEETZE2EI  NEREERZEZEME -
BoN - EBREHBRERETAS  LELS
ERENEZARDAULETS  BERESH
BEESRERFHEBRR - RERR ' K
SERMELSN  NERLETEUNTE
CHREBRE

Occupational health and BEERE 2023 2022 2021
safety statistics RZZ2EE =g== —T-F —E_—F
Number of lost days due to work injury A T{5MEBAIEL
H & 271 214 359
Number of work-related fatal accidents T {EfEREEEYE A SR
o gE| - - -
Number of work injuries accidents TESEWHE 2 5 3
Accident rate per 1,000 workers 1,000 T AR
(Hong Kong) EINR(FE) 10 13 19
Accident rate per 1,000 workers 1,000 T AR
(Macau) EINECRM) - 29 =
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group was not subject to any material administrative penalties
or fines for any breach of laws or regulations relating to the provision
of a safe working environment or the protection of employees
against occupational hazards during the Relevant Period.

Hong Kong e Employment Ordinance
o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance

Macau o Occupational Safety and Health Law for
Construction Industry

Development and training

The Group is devoted to creating a learning culture among the
teams to enable staff to develop their careers and reach their goals.
Therefore, the Group organises teams to attend external training,
such as the BIM induction course, from time to time. Training is also
provided to management to maintain and enhance their technical
knowledge and professional skills. Training for labours and staff
at construction sites mainly includes safety precautions in the
construction industry and case studies of previous accidents.

The Group places great importance on the quality of our construction
management and safety concerns. As of 31 December 2023, a total
of 127 employees have received training. The details are as follows:
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Percentage
of Employees Average
Receiving Training
Training Hours

ZIEEES 19 3% B B

Gender 14 51
Male 54
Female pegc

Job position TR
Senior management RREEAE
Middle Management PARERE

General staff and labour —mETRTA

67% 2.5
10% 4.3
4% 11.7
73% 2.3
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Labour standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of forced and child labour. The
Group complies with relevant regulations and laws to safeguard the
rights of our employees, and will not tolerate labour exploitation.
During the recruitment process, we verify the age of applicants
and the practice is extended to the workers hired by our sub-
contractors. The Group prevents hiring child labour by conducting an
identification check of every new employee.

Without exception, during the Relevant Period, the Group complied
the relevant laws and regulations regarding child labour and forced
labour, including but not limited to the following.

Hong Kong e Employment Ordinance
o Minimum Wage Ordinance
o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour

Macau . Labour Relations Law

Supply chain management

The materials used by the Group mainly consist of materials and
parts for the MVAC systems. To fulfil the Group’s responsibility to
society, guidelines regarding environmental protection have been
established and are regularly reviewed by the Management. All
work and materials used by subcontractors have to comply with this
policy. Additionally, the geographical region of the supplier is also
considered to ensure the delivery of materials.

Supplier and Subcontractor Control and Monitoring

The performance of suppliers and subcontractors on our
approved list is continuously reviewed through site inspections
and risk assessments. Subcontractors are assessed based on their
performance, completion times, and services provided during the
project retention period. Suppliers are also assessed based on
delivery times, material quality, and after-sales services. Suppliers
and subcontractors with unsatisfactory performance may be
removed from the approved list. During the Relevant Period, no
major complaints regarding the quality of materials used or the
performance of work have been received.
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Supplier and Subcontractor Profile

As at 31 December 2023, we have a total of 235 suppliers and 96

BE HERERHBE

REBR D BB/
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subcontractors. They are mainly from Hong Kong and Macau. H2IJEBHEFRCEZHBEE - REFEKRE
?%&&W
No. of
No. of suppliers subcontractors
HERHAE PEEHE
Macau BB 77 43
Hong Kong P 158 53
Total s 235 9%
Product responsibility EmEE
Quality Management b=g=4-¢:]
The Group is responsible to the main contractor for the works it has AEEBEGRETKHN T RAAREFES - B
completed and has not encountered any issues of product recall or WHEBE|{T(ERECOKREEE ° ZFE =l
quality concerns. The Group implements a series of quality control & — &7 G 8 B4 5 i AR T1E S

measures to ensure the quality of work:

o Trainings are provided to our project management teams and
subcontracted workers to ensure their understanding of, and
compliance with, our quality standards;

o Onsite inspections and rectifications are carried out at each
construction site. Immediate measures would be taken to
rectify any identified quality control issues. Upon rectification,
we would conduct re-inspections to ensure such issues have
been resolved; and

o We require subcontractors to fully comply with our quality
control measures when performing work for our construction
projects.

The Group did not receive any significant complaints regarding the
services provided and did not recall any products due to safety and
health reasons during the Relevant Period.
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Data privacy

In accordance with the regulations set out in the Group’s Code
of Conduct, the Group takes all necessary steps to ensure the
data of its employees, customers, subcontractors and suppliers is
stored securely and kept confidential. All tender documents, service
contracts, applicable licenses and employees’ personal data are
carefully secured and archived.

The Group is strictly committed to complying with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance and adheres to relevant regulations in
the collection, disclosure, usage, retention and storage of data
to ensure the integrity and safety of data. Customer information
is only collected based on necessity. We regularly review our
data management practices and provide relevant training to our
employees.

Intellectual properties, marketing and labelling

The Company’s operations, primarily entailing the installation and
fitting of our MVAC systems, are not heavily reliant upon marketing
or advertising. To the Directors’ knowledge, there are no significant
ramifications with respect to intellectual property, advertising and
labelling. We shall continually observe the business climate to
identify any noteworthy risks in this regard.

Anti-corruption

Any forms of bribery, forgery, misappropriation of materials
(including intellectual property), extortion, fraud and money
laundering are strictly prohibited. The Anti-corruption Policy is
instituted to ensure all personnel strictly adhere to the Group’s “zero
tolerance” policy regarding acts of corruption, bribery and extortion
that may occur in the course of their daily duties. The Anti-Fraud
Policy sets forth the expectations of each employee to remain vigilant
and alert to any potential fraudulent activity in the performance of
their duties. Additionally, the Staff Manual provides guidelines on
appropriate behaviour regarding gifts, conflicts of interest and other
matters to heighten the awareness of all personnel regarding the
risk of fraud. Organisational training has been scheduled, focusing
on fostering integrity and providing instruction on recognising and
handling fraudulent acts for both directors and personnel.
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Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure

We encourage transparency and honesty and provide channels
for reporting misconduct or malpractices. The Whistleblowing
Policy safeguards those who report such activities from potential
repercussions. Employees are strongly encouraged to promptly report
any suspicious activity to their direct supervisor, senior management,
or the Audit Committee while preserving anonymity.

The Company shall take due care in responding to all reports of
suspected cases of fraud and conduct thorough investigations
with the utmost confidentiality. If required, corrective actions and
disciplinary measures (including dismissal in certain instances) shall
be imposed expeditiously. All suspicious transactions detected from
the investigations shall be timely reported to the relevant authority
by the responsible party.

Compliance with laws and regulations

For the Relevant Period, the Group and its personnel adhered
to the relevant laws and regulations pertaining to unlawful and
corruption practices as prescribed by the Penal Code of Macau and
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong and had not been
involved in any legal proceedings related to corruption activities.

Community investment

The Group strongly believes in the concept of community co-
building to help create a coherent and harmonious community. The
Group intends to lead by example by demonstrating the importance
of community investment and encouraging our staff to participate
in community initiatives through charity events, volunteering and
donations.
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EEREhEEEBRREFERS

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Chi Keung (#7&34), aged 67, is our executive
Director, the chairman of our Board and the chief executive officer
of our Company. He is also the co-founder of our Group in 1996.
He was appointed as director of the Company on 29 September
2016. Mr. Chung is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
business strategies and overseeing the business and operation of our
Group. Mr. Chung is also a director of all members of our Group.

Mr. Chung has over 48 years of experience in the supply, installation
and fitting-out of MVAC system. In March 1974, Mr. Chung
joined Young's Engineering Co., Ltd as an apprentice and received
training at the Major Air-conditioning Service Department. Upon the
completion of his apprenticeship, he continued to work in the same
department until July 1980. In 1987, Mr. Chung co-founded Wing
Fung Engineering Limited. In July 1996 and March 2007, Mr. Chung
established Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited (“Wing Fung HK")
and Botop Engineering (Macau) Limited, respectively and has been
managing the business and operation of the two companies in Hong
Kong and Macau. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Chung was a member of
the senior management of Dickson Group Holdings Limited (currently
known as Richly Field China Development Limited), a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 313), and
was responsible for managing the operation of certain construction
projects in Hong Kong.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Chung owns all the issued share
capital of Wing Fung Capital Limited, the controlling Shareholders,
which owns 83,062,500 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 51.19% of all issued shares of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
owned by Wing Fung Capital Limited under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO").
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Ms. LAl Suk Fan (%), aged 61, was appointed as our
executive Director on 24 March 2017. She is primarily responsible for
overseeing the administration and human resources functions of our
Group.

Ms. Lai studied at Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute of the Vocational
Training Council on a part-time basis and was awarded a certificate
for accounting technicians in August 1998. In 1998, Ms. Lai
obtained a certificate in Accounting=Third Level issued by the
London Chamber of Commerce and Industry Examinations Board.
Ms. Lai also joined a distance-learning programme and received a
Higher Certificate in Business Management from the Hong Kong
Management Association in June 2009.

Ms. Lai has over 42 years of experience in administration, accounting
and human resources. Ms. Lai has worked as a junior clerk at
Teamlight Enterprises (HK) Ltd. from June 1980 to March 1982,
then she joined Shirtmaster Limited as a purchasing clerk from May
1982 to February 1987. During June 1987 to July 1999, Ms. Lai has
been working in Wing Fung Engineering Limited and Wing Fung HK
and her last position was an administration officer when she left the
companies in July 1999. From February 2001 to June 2011, Ms. Lai
worked at Artsuc M&E Limited as the administration manager. In
July 2011, Ms. Lai rejoined our Group as the administration manager
of Wing Fung HK.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOY Hiu Fai Eric ($:#&#8), aged 46, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and
is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Choy has more than 20 years of experience in accounting. Mr.
Choy obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Hong Kong in November 2000.
Upon graduation, he joined Arthur Andersen & Co, an accounting
firm, in September 2000. Mr. Choy then continued his career with
PricewaterhouseCoopers as a senior associate in the assurance and
business advisory services department in July 2002. In 2004, Mr.
Choy joined Procon CPA Limited as a managing director and he
is now the head of the company’s operation in Hong Kong and
Shenzhen.

Mr. Choy has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since February 2005. He was also admitted as a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
the United States in June 2002. Mr. Choy has been a Certified Tax
Adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since 30 September
2010.

Mr. Choy was an independent non-executive Director of CCIAM
Future Energy Limited (formerly known as The Hong Kong Building
and Loan Agency Limited), a company currently listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 145) from July 2016 to
June 2023.
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Mr. LEI For (RI®}), aged 46, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lei has more than 21 years of experience in investment banking,
corporate finance and investment and management matters. Mr. Lei
obtained his Bachelor of Social Science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in November 2001. He started his career with L.P.
Lammas Asia Limited from September 2001 to October 2002. After
that, he worked in MasterLink Securities (Hong Kong) Corporation
Limited as an executive from December 2002 to February 2005. In
February 2005, Mr. Lei joined Haitong International Capital Limited
(previously known as Taifook Capital Limited and Tai Fook Capital
Limited) as an executive, and he left as a manager in May 2007.
From June 2007 to October 2010, he was appointed as the senior
manager and then the vice president of the corporate finance
department in ABCI Securities Company Limited. Mr. Lei then carried
on his career with Cinda (BVI) Limited as the corporate finance
director of Cinda International Capital Limited from October 2010
to April 2011. In April 2011 to December 2016, he joined CIMB
Securities Limited as a director in investment banking. From 2017
to 2019, he joined Apastron Capital Limited with his last position
as managing director. Mr. Lei is currently the director of Hongsong
Limited.
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Mr. LAl Wai Ming (Z2{28), aged 48, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent

judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lai graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1997 and was awarded a Bachelor of Science degree in
Building Technology and Management. Then he obtained a Master of
Science in Real Estate from the University of Hong Kong in December
1999. In February 2002, Mr. Lai further obtained a diploma in
building surveying from the College of Estate Management in the
United Kingdom, which is a long-distance programme. Mr. Lai was
also certified as a registered professional engineer by the Engineer
Registration Board in April 2006, and he was admitted as a member
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the Chartered
Institute of Building in December 2004 and May 2005, respectively.

Mr. Lai has over 25 years of experience in building service and
engineering. Mr. Lai joined Gammon Construction Limited in July
1998 and he was the assistant project manager when he left the
company in November 2007. He then worked at Hongkong Land
Limited, a property investment, management and development
group listed in London, Bermuda and Singapore, from November
2007 to July 2011 as an assistant project manager. In July 2011, Mr.
Lai joined a property developer as a project manager in Hong Kong
and he was a senior project manager when he left the company in
August 2017. In February 2018, Mr. Lai has joined a construction
company in Hong Kong as a project director.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAW Pak Hin Edward (W), aged 37, joined our Group
and was appointed as the chief financial officer of our Group on
12 September 2016, and as our Company Secretary on 14 February
2017. Mr. Law is primarily responsible for overseeing the finance and
accounting functions of our Group.

In July 2010, Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from the
Australian National University in Australia. He was admitted as an
associate of the CPA Australia in August 2010 and was further
admitted as a full member in July 2013. Mr. Law has more than 13
years of experience in finance and accounting. Before joining our
Group, Mr. Law has joined BDO Limited as an associate in December
2010 and he was an assistant manager when he left BDO Limited in
December 2014. Then he carried on his career with Ernst & Young
in December 2014 and he was a senior accountant in the assurance
department when he left the firm in August 2016.
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The Directors hereby presented their report and audited consolidated
financial statements for the Relevant Period.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 29 September 2016
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) (the “Companies Law"”) of the Cayman
Islands.

The companies now comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure
of the Group in preparation for the Listing. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Further details of
the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the prospectus issued by the
Company dated 12 February 2018 (the “Prospectus”). The Shares
were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 27 February 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC systems for
buildings in Hong Kong and Macau. The projects of the Group can
generally be categorised into private sector projects and public sector
projects. A list of the subsidiaries of the Company and details of their
principal activities are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes to the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

For discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of business, its key relationship with employees, customers, suppliers
and subcontractors, an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business and an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators, can be
found in sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 7 to 16 of this annual report and the discussion of
its environmental policies and performance, can be found in section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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The Group has established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group's risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry and
market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and senior
management are responsible for identifying and analysing the risk
associated with their respective function, preparing and measuring
risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk management.
Details of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are set
out on page 12 of this annual report.

For the Relevant Period, the Group had continued to engage an
independent internal control consultant to review the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system and directly report to the
Audit Committee. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Internal Control and Risk Management” under the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the Relevant Period, the Group’s operations were mainly carried
out in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group shall accordingly comply
with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and Macau and
the respective places of incorporation of the Company and its
subsidiaries. During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Board was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Relevant Period by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Relevant Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 85 of this
annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend of the
Company for the Relevant Period to the Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years, as extracted from the consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 168 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Relevant Period in the plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Relevant Period in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 21 January 2022, every four (4) issued and unissued existing
shares of the Company of par value HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company were consolidated into one (1) consolidated
share of par value HK$0.04 each in the share capital of the
Company. The authorised share capital of the Company has become
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 25,000,000,000 consolidated shares
of par value HK$0.04 each, of which 162,250,000 consolidated
shares would be in issue which are fully paid or credited as fully paid.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately
HK$21,074,000.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group or
existed during the Relevant Period.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, the underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which were required
to be notified the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the
interests or short positions which any such director or chief
executive was taken or deemed to have under such provision
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to standard of dealings by
Directors referred in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:
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Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest interested in  position Shareholding
e/
BERERN
IREREA B EEME ROBE %R BRESL
Mr. Chung Interest in controlled 83,062,500 Long position 51.19%
corporation (Note)
EhE RiEwDEE R (M AT) ey
Note: /5/732 .

The 83,062,500 Shares are held by Wing Fung Capital Limited, which
is an associated corporation of the Company and wholly-owned by
Mr. Chung. Therefore, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Wing Fung Capital Limited for the purposes of the SFO.
Mr. Chung is our executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

83,062,500/ Ik BWing Fung Capital
Limited#$ A * Z AR AAREIKERF
HELAELEHRE - AL - RBFRPEK
Bl E « 8% AWK B Wing Fung Capital
Limited TS BBV PI B RGO R Bz © 5%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had registered
any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2023, the
following persons/entities (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had or were deemed to have taken
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which were recorded in the register of interests required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules.

(m

BRENFIEREEIN RZTBEZ=F+=
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Number of the

Capacity/ Shares held/ Long/short Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest interested in  position Shareholding
s,/
BEERN
RERERE B0 EmHE BROBE F %R BERESK
Wing Fung Capital Limited  Beneficial owner 83,062,500 Long position 51.19%

Wing Fung Capital Limited BE##EA A
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” above, had notified the
Company of an interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debenture of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any of its associated corporation a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of the Shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the Shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or had exercised
any such rights.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the Relevant Period, so far as the Company is aware, the
aggregate revenue attributable to our five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 99.8% (2022: 98.3%)
and 70.2% (2022: 53.4%), respectively, of the Group's total revenue
for the Relevant Period. Our Directors consider our Group'’s business
model is sustainable as we have been actively tendering for projects
and securing awards of contracts placed by various main contractors.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 48.3% (2022: 58.7%) of the Group’s total costs
of materials for the Relevant Period and the purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 13.4%
(2022: 21.4%). Sub-contracting fees from the Group’s five largest
subcontractors accounted for approximately 73.5% (2022: 69.8%)
of the Group's total subcontractor costs for the Relevant Period and
the sub-contracting fee from the largest sub-contractor included
therein amounted to approximately 33.1% (2022: 25.4%).
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None of the Directors nor any of his/her close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, suppliers and subcontractors during the Relevant Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Relevant Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Further information regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.09 the GEM Listing Rules has been
received from each of the INEDs.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Updated biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 58
to 62 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with Company for a term of three years from 27 February 2018,
being the date on which the Shares are listed on GEM, subject
to further renewal, and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by the Company or Director or the Director has not
been re-elected as a director of the Company or has been removed
by shareholders of the Company at any of its general meeting or is
disqualified from acting as a director of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Each INED was
appointed under a letter of appointment for a term of three years,
subject to further renewal and unless terminated by the Company
or the INED in accordance with the terms as set out in the letter of
appointment. All Directors are also subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years pursuant to the requirements of the
Articles and the applicable Listing Rules. The service agreement of
each executive Director and the letter of appointment of each INED
have been renewed for another term of 3 years commencing from
27 February 2024 on the same terms and conditions.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has or is proposed to have any
service contracts or letters of appointment with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than the statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at every annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any Director appointed pursuant
to Article 16.2 or Article 16.3 shall not be taken into account in
determining which Directors are to retire by rotation. A retiring
Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at which he
retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. The Company at
any annual general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the
vacated office by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. Further, according to Article
16.3 of the Articles, the Company may from time to time in general
meeting by ordinary resolution increase or reduce the number of
Directors but so that the number of Directors shall not be less than
two. Subject to the provisions of these Articles and the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company may by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles, our independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Choy and Mr. Lei shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and elsewhere in this annual
report, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director or an entity
connected with the Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Relevant Period.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

During the Relevant Period, save as disclosed in this annual report,
there were no contracts of significance between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholders or any of
its subsidiaries or any contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for making recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of the Group. The remunerations
of the Directors are determined by reference to the Group’s
operating results, comparable market statistics, the responsibilities
and duties assumed by each Director as well as their individual
performance.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong
which comply with the requirements under the Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF"”) Schemes Ordinance. All assets under the schemes are
held separately from the Group under independently administrated
funds. Contribution to the MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes
Ordinance.

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in Macau which
complies with the requirements under the Social Security Fund
("FSS”). All assets under the schemes are held separately from the
Group under independently administrated funds. Contribution to the
FSS scheme follows Law no. 4/2010 (Social Security System).

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under the retirement benefits scheme
utilised to reduce future contributions.

Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2023 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2023

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

2 IR R o

REEBE  BRAFHREEEIN  KRA]K
HAE(AIP B A A B BRI A
AMERTVEAAA BRI ERIEAER
BB A BB RT L [ AN A R S EAE I B A
AIRERBHEAEBREH °

EERTIERESFHMALHME

EERAEERLRSHMA LB S
A R A TS REMEEOR10 -

FEBUR

ARBIERILFME B & AR KE A FBK
RERBETEN NWHEAESEEZRES
ARG ERERANBRTFMBERERER
E=SFLERREZ - EFNHMLI2EAN
SENEEXE  EALBMERARE -
SEEAENBEURRENBARTAE

T ©

RIRE R E

AEBERBEENERIELES (BB
& DEFEGGIRE R FE HRETE - AR S
BEOBIUNAKEZIINMABLEENE
TRA - BEEAEIHITBTRED B K
5] »

AEBERFMEEFALGRERES (HRE
S DRTNATENRTE - FIAFESIEENSS
VRAEBZIINMEBLEEMNESHES -
HRESHEFBETEL2010505 RS RE
FIEY °

BE_ZT_=Ffk_FT_—_F+_A=+—
HIEFE @ AEERKEFGFETILELK
HEFR MR A R LR o

R-ZZTE-_=F+=-A=+—8  K&EERK
BRI S F BN A FRE S I REM T
90

73



74

SOEEMTNERAT
S e

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EXERS

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of Directors
nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor any of their
respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
conflicts of interests which any such person has or may have with
the Group during the Relevant Period.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company confirms that the non-competition undertaking given
by, amongst other, Mr. Chung and Wing Fung Capital Limited,
details of which were set out in the Prospectus, has been fully
complied and enforced since the Listing and up to the date of this
report. The Board also confirms that there are no other matters in
relation to the aforesaid undertaking which should be brought to
the attention of the Shareholders and the potential investors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Relevant Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Every Director shall be entitled under the Company’s Articles to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him or her as a Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his or her favour, or in which he or she is
acquitted. Such provision was in force since the adoption of the
Articles upon the date of the Listing and remains in force as at the
date of this report.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the Relevant
Period are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report. None of the related party transactions
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or
non-exempted continuing connected transaction as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules during the Relevant Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company, at least 25%
of the Company’s issued capital was held by public as at the date of
this report.

AUDITOR

On 29 October 2021, PwC resigned as the Auditor. On the same
date, the Board appointed Mazars to fill the casual vacancy resulting
from the resignation of PwC and to hold office until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company. Further details
can be found on the Company’s announcement published on 29
October 2021.

Save for the above, there were no other changes in the Company’s
auditor in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the Relevant Period have
been audited by Mazars. Mazars shall retire at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Mazars as the Auditor and to
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the Relevant Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 of the GEM Listing Rules expect for the code C.2.1.
For further details regarding the compliance of the CG Code can be
found in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 17 to 38 of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the Relevant Period.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Relevant Period, our Group did not make any charitable
or other donations. (2022: HK$5,000)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events have taken place subsequent to 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitlements to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 31 May 2024 to Thursday, 6 June 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of the shares of the Company will
be registered. Shareholders of the Company are reminded to ensure
all properly executed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 pm on Thursday, 30 May 2024.

On behalf of the Board
Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
CHUNG Chi Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

mazars

To the members of
Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Fung
Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 85 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group at 31 December
2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B M % BAT RS

Mazars CPA LimITED
hBERIR (FE) eitmenraras

42 Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BARBFAEEISRPIREZ421E

Tel EzaE: (852) 2909 5555

Fax f#H: (852) 2810 0032

Email EEB: info@mazars.hk

Website #831E: www.mazars.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BRRFXEE

RIEESZEXHAE  BEREZFEARES
BERARRGEMBHRERT CREEZSAE -
BEERNEZEE M B HRRILIUL KT B
EREBLRENESH NIAEREFS
REBBERER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matters

BREELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEBERNEERARERER

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

BB KWk TR

Refer to Notes 2.18, 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RIGEPEHRERME2.18 « 45 °

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
revenue as recognised from construction contracts
amounted to approximately HK$114.6 million.
BE_T_=F+_A=+—HILFE X EXEEEE
EENEROPRERON46BEET -

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised over
time by measuring the progress towards completion
of the Group’s performance obligations as set out in
respective contracts. The Group has used the output
method to estimate the progress of each performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference to the value
of construction works completed to date (as certified by
external surveyors or evaluated by internal project team)
as a proportion of the total contract value of the relevant
construction contracts. In addition, contract value may also
be subject to changes due to variations of works, claims or
disputes with customers.

BESAONK=ETIERTE ESERNBEESHMEE
HAEENTHREEREREER - ESEEARLEM
AERETKBENEENEE  EF2RESTRNE
L TIZEE (EIMNED RIS AR B M ERIA B &K IB A (4) 15
HEAREESNNBESNEELD - I - SOEEIA
REETA2ERT - MRFEE MU M &

We identified the revenue recognition on construction
contracts as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the amounts involved and the significant degree of
management’s judgement on the estimation of the total
outcome of construction contracts as well as the progress
towards completion of construction work.

BRI R ENE R M REES QRN AR EETIA
MEETRTHREENHTRERS HABRESL
IR R BB EZER -

Our key procedures, among others, included:

BENERRF(HP ) 8k

a)

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s control
processes and key controls over revenue recognition
on construction contracts;
gﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%E@Eﬁ@%?&%?ﬁé%ﬂﬁléﬁﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬁ
BEECTE

enquiring the Group’s internal project team and
check to the internal project team’s evaluation
reports on the status of projects under construction
as selected on a sample basis to evaluate the
reasonableness of the progress towards completion
of the selected projects and to identify if there are
any variations of works, claims or disputes with
customers which may vary the revenue recognition
on the contracts;

m BEEEANELRESRERALRNAEIEEBEKL
MG E SRR R B 600N - DART R
THENTKESRR A BRI EEREMIRE
E5] - BRFERFHULD - UBE L KEHERR

BB

agreeing the total contract value to the respective
signed contracts, variation orders or correspondence
with customers, on a sample basis;
MERHESHEERREBESAH - TiRE]S
FEFFHEA
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EECERNERERRERSE

d)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

E S BY IR B KB ERE

Refer to Notes 2.10, 3.1, 4, 16 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
R AMBEHRAMNE2.103.1 4 16 %17 °

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to approximately HK$34.4
million and HK$82.0 million respectively and the provisions
for impairment loss allowance on these trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to approximately HK$2.3
million and HK$13.2 million respectively.
RZZEZ=F+-"A=+—H0 - EBEXEMNEFEKX
BRENEEBTED R AN4ABEB TR 08EH
TRkZEEHREFARGNEENREBBEEES B
REIBBBTRIZ2EEHRTT

verifying whether the value of work has been
reasonably recognised as contract revenue by
checking to the completion status specified in
external surveyor's reports and/or internal project
team’s evaluation reports, on a sample basis, to the
value of construction works as recognised by the
Group; and
ZEIREBESACAERRARRBENNE  7EA
MRS SN BRI R R0 E &SN EBIE B BEEY
hREMATARAE EEEERNEETRE
B &

evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external surveyors who issued
surveyor’s reports for our selected samples of
construction contracts.

AL AR T RS AR EE BRI 2 MR S 87N B A
EMrEER N  BHREERE -

Our key procedures, among others, included:
EENTERFEPBE B

understanding the internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection and the ECL Assessment
(including the assessment on the methodology of
impairment and estimation of expected credit loss
allowance);

THRERMEERRE WELKBREEBEFEHA
HEE(BETEREREREEFEBREBMLN
)

evaluating the reasonableness of the historical credit
loss rates as adopted by management in the ECL
Assessment by checking, on a sample basis, the
past settlement history and subsequent settlement
information;
HEEEEREMEEBRIERANBEEES
BRELREE  MEAMEREEEENTEHELE
RIENEFR
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Key audit matters

RRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEZERNERERRERSE

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
assess lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets (the “ECL Assessment”).
For the ECL Assessment, management grouped trade
receivables and contract assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and estimated the expected credit losses
allowance to be recognised by considering the aging
profile of overdue balances, the repayment and default
histories of different customers, the historical credit loss
rates, the post-year end subsequent settlements from
respective customers, on-going business relationship with
the relevant customers and forward-looking information
relevant to customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances.

EEERAEEMBREENESREATEZNEES
EHRREBERENEEZEREEBSENG(EHEEES

BRED - MFEMEEEBENGENS BEEESAEAR
UEERRFHRCEIREFTBERANEENHE - B

BERBPERZRER - TRTP ZER NIRRT
i BEEEREX SEPZFEREREN - EEMH
BEFZRBEXGRAIETFEREREELHRENHERA
ZHIEMER - Bt THERCRBEEEERME -

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the amounts involved and the use of
judgement and estimates by the management in the ECL
Assessment.

MR R eBENEZEAREBBRTHIEREEES
BRHERE A 2 2 R RASESREFERS
HWEEZREMEEEREREREE -

)  checking the aging profile of the trade receivables
and contract assets at 31 December 2023 and
the post year-end subsequent settlements from
customers, on a sample basis, to underlying
accounting records and supporting documents;
MERER T _=Ft_-_A=1T—HEZEKX
EREHNBENRKRBARETFNFHERRIOER
&1 AR B & m R 8% I S St

d) understanding the Group’s on-going business
relationship with the relevant customers through
discussion with management and corroborated the
information as provided by management to the
status of underlying projects, public information and
correspondence with the relevant customers; and
FREERENWATRE SEEEBETPNE
BEBRARZEEREMREENEEAER &
A~ AFREMMERREEPHEMA - &

e) understanding and evaluating the management’s
process in identifying the relevant forward-looking
information for the ECL Assessment.

TR R EHEE R B Y E A TR B B BB A8
RIBEIEE R IZ R



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2023 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2023
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2023

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY 2B RE

s AEEERAUSERKLE/ERWEH
ARBRE  LRBECDEDNNEZSE
B RERTEY BEEERBELEN
BENBRERRBOHEMHLBRAFEXN
THEERE - MEFRER/FHEEKR
THEAER BFFRZAMBETIR
FIBRAMBBRANBEER I
BomREBEEETE QBT ES
MER - BEENERABREZBERE
BHFMESHNERZRASER - HERE
EHHBERAREN EEETHAR

FEEEEES ©

s HEAGRAUBHmR(BEKRE) NHEED
HRBERAR  UREEMBEHRRZ
BEAARRBRESHEM@R 5 MEA -

e H BEREASERBEEHIADOME
BHESRENERER  UMGEEH
BHAERER - BFAAREE &
BRATEENERIE - BESARE
ENERERAERIEE -

BFHEAEEN(HT B aE%HE - K
AZH  EXEREREERETER 2
EESEEZBMENEARE N ERNE
RERFG ©

BENFAEEBRRXER  FABFCHE
ERBYMENEEREERESR  WEKE
BEAREAENERRETEEEEY
HENBEEREMER - URAIBEREE MK
ERH)TTEI R SRV E 45 e (&8 ) -

83



84

BEETHERAT
:g: & 4 3R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung

Practising Certificate number: P07321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E_-= -
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M et FHBT FHET
Revenue = 5 114,570 184,020
Cost of sales HEKA 7 (111,508) (183,534)
Gross profit EF 3,062 486
Other income, net Hi U A 558 6 277 5,652
Provision of impairment losses on B HRBGHIEREHNEER
trade receivables and contract BB B EF R
assets, net 7 (12,224) (220)
Write-off of contract assets BHEEME 7 (11,207) i
Administrative expenses TR 7 (18,364) (17,903)
Operating loss REEE (38,456) (11,985)
Finance costs U IO N 8 (1,803) (1,830)
Loss before income tax BRATER A EE (40,259) (13,815)
Income tax credit TSk e 11 4,354 2,616
Loss for the year FREE (35,905) (11,199)
Other comprehensive expenses for the FREMEEMY
year, net of tax R IE
Item that may be reclassified to profit — FJ 5 E #7748 = 1845 £
or loss: HE
- Exchange differences on — BB ETR
translation of a foreign fEHZER
operation (58) (250)
Total comprehensive expenses for FR2HEHA XA
the year (35,963) (11,449)
Basic and diluted loss per share MARFAEBEERETEA
for loss attributable to the ELHEENERELRR
ordinary equity BEEE (8RB
holders of the Company
(HK cents per share) 13 (22.13) (6.90)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

E=—1N

=

PA b & 2o b 25 5K 8 A2 (R B Y B o — 6 58
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB AR R &

At 31 December 2023 R—ZE—-=%F+—-A=+—8H
2023 2022
—_E_= =3
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHxT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment = I 2R 14 217 376
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15 1,023 136
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSIEE 23 10,697 5,737
11,937 6,249
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 16 68,813 122,235
Trade and other receivables, B 5N EMERGRIE
deposits and prepayments e RIENRIA 17 34,428 35,666
Current income tax assets BVEAFT 1S T & B 199 805
Pledged and restricted bank deposits = & R IR 1T1E K 18 9,408 9,242
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 18 6,014 12,047
118,862 179,995
Total assets EEHAE 130,799 186,244
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HERE 15 220 =
220 =
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and retention payables E 5 e FRIE R FER
RE® 19 31,028 40,863
Other payables and accrued EL At < FRIE 2
expenses JEETE 20 5,727 5,261
Lease liabilities HERE 15 826 141
Bank borrowings SRITER 21 27,335 38,353
64,916 84,618

Total liabilities EEH5 65,136 84,618
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE BRI R

At 31 December 2023 R—E-=F+_-HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=F ===

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

M et FET FAT

Net assets BEEFE 65,663 101,626
EQUITY s

Share capital (& 22(i) 6,490 6,490

Reserves & 59,173 95,136

Total equity AR 65,663 101,626

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 167 were #85F167BHGEAMEHRRCEEETSN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 ~Z P04 = 8 =+ 75 B #t4E & 5 T30 i

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: LTALTREREE
Chung Chi Keung Lai Suk Fan LR BRF
Director Director EF o

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LA _E4R & BF 75 iR 5 3 & 388 () 68 BT Bt 5 — 6 B
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. i o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERESE X

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE T -=F+-_A=+—HIFE

Exchange
Share Share translation Capital Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Bx  EfEE  EXGE  EABE RGER  RER it
HKS'000  HKS000  HKFOOD HKFOOD  HKFOOD  HKSOO0  HK§'000
ThR AT AR AR AR TR ThR
(Note 2ifa)) -~ (Note 22/
(Wz220e) - (i 221i6)

Balance at 1 January 2022 S
—RBiER 6,490 50,549 (567) 11,676 (12,941) 57,868 113,075
Loss for the year EREE 3 5 - - 2 (11,199) (11,199)
Other comprehensive expenses A2ERY
~ltem that may be reclassified to ~fREHTHE
profit or loss BEHER
Exchange differences arising on translation &SN EBE L
of a foreign operation EiZR - - (250) g - 5 (250
Total comprehensive expenses ERPERTAR
for the year “ - (250) e - (11,199 (11,449)
Balance at 31 December 2022 i S
ST-HR&s 6,490 50,549 (817) 11,676 (12,941) 46,669 101,626
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZBZ=f-4
-BiER 6,490 50,549 (817) 11,676 (12,9%1) 146,669 101,626
Loss for the year FRER - 5 - % y (35,905) (35,905)
Other comprehensive expenses AEERR
- ltem that may be redlassified to ~REHTHZ
profit or loss ERHEE
Bichange differences arsing on translation £ S EBELH
of a foreign operation EiZR - - (58) g 5 - (58)
Total comprehensive expenses FREEMXAR
for the year = = (8) = 3 (35,905) (35,963)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZBZ=E+Zf
=t-AtLs 6,490 50,549 (875) 11,676 (12,941) 10,764 65,663

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA %z & 4 25 %5 Bh 3K 8 12 =] B8 B BT =% — O B3
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=fF —EF-—
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
HtaF FExT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Cash generated from (used in) e pTis (FTA)
operations He 25(a) 7,616 (13,488)
Income taxes paid EFEH - )
Net cash from (used in) operating K& EEIFTS(FTA)
activities REeFHE 7.616 (13,489)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Placement of pledged and restricted 77/ 2 18 & 2R
bank deposits RITER (172) (18)
Release of pledged and restricted AR ER B IR R PR
bank deposits RITIER = 5,971
Payments for plant and equipment 2SN ERAB T - (157)
Interest received EF B 89 46
Net cash (used in) from investing & EE (FTA) B
activities BHE R (83) 5,842
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIE T RIR 63,901 107,890
Repayments of bank borrowings ERRITER (75,339) (99,381)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEMEARE 25(c) (834) (766)
Interest paid EfTFE (1,709) (1,783)
Net cash (used in) from financing BEEE (FTH) B
activities REeFE (13,981) 5,960
Net decrease in cash and cash REeERESZEEY
equivalents WA FEE (6,448) (1,687)
Cash and cash equivalents at the WERVRESRIAS
beginning of the reporting period ZEY 2,492 4,127
Effects of exchange rate changes on ~ [EREEHIR S K
cash and cash equivalents ReEEYNETE (5) 52
Cash and cash equivalents at the HREHKRRER
end of the reporting period REEEYWEHKRES)
(net of overdrafts) 18 (3,961) 2,492

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A F42 & IR 4 % & K B & [ & M it 55 — HF 53
conjunction with the accompanying notes. i o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 September 2016 as
an exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office of PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands was valid until 24 January 2024 and the
new registered office is 71 Fort Street, PO Box 500, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1=1106, Cayman Islands, with effect
from 25 January 2024. The principal place of business is Unit
D, 21st Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the provision of supply, installation and fitting-out services of
mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning (“MVAC") system
for buildings. The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is Wing Fung Capital Limited, a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company listed its shares on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 27 February 2018.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(the "CO") (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.
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Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) New/revised HKFRSs applied by the Group

The accounting policies applied in preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are consistent
with those applied in preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 except for the adoption
of new/revised HKFRSs as set out below. The
Group has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued

but is not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Definition of
Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax
Reform—Pillar Two
Model Rules
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2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New/revised HKFRSs applied by the Group
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies.

These amendments have no effect on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any
items in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has reviewed and updated the
disclosures of accounting policies to disclose the
material accounting policy information.

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates.

The adoption of amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of
HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The adoption of amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+-_A=+—HALFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs applied by the Group
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform
= Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary
relief from accounting for deferred taxes arising
from the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development’s Pillar Two model rules. The
Amendments also introduce targeted disclosure
requirements to help investors understand an
entity’s exposure to income taxes arising from the
rules.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has
not early adopted.

2. EASEBERENGE

2.1 REEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non
-current !

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants '

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements'

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Lack of
Exchangeability ?

Amendments to
HKAS 21

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture 3
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: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025
g The effective date to be determined

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in
future periods will have any material impact on the
Group's consolidation financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries and principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(iij) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at period end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a net basis within
other income, net.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the controlling shareholder and
executive director of the Group who make strategic
decisions. Details refer to Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives or, as follows:

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Machinery 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
27k

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised costs are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets. The Group's financial assets at
amortised cost comprise of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, pledged and restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the
effective interest method.

Impairment

The Group assess on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applied the simplified approach permitted
under HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

For other receivables and deposits, it is measured at
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected loss, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of
a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.
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Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment (Continued)

For cash and cash equivalents, pledged and
restricted bank deposits, it is also subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, yet the
impairment loss is immaterial because the Group
only transacts with reputable international financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

(v) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over three years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group or group entities currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.10

2.12

2.13

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. They are generally due for settlement within
30 days to 45 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
financial institutions with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits
Pledged bank deposits represent the amounts of cash
pledged as collateral to the banks for project bidding and

issuing performance bonds.

Pledged bank deposits are separately presented from
cash and cash equivalents.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

share or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.14

2.15

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.15 Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred income tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current income tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. EASFEREN(E

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same. Control is transferred over time and
revenue is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’'s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer), in determining
the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
consideration for the effects of the time value of money.
The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers
in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or
arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group's
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness
information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effect of the significant financing
component if the period of financing is one year or less.
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REUBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a
variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services to a
customer. The variable consideration is estimated by
using either the expected-value or the most-likely-
amount method whichever is better to predict the
entitled amount. The estimated variable consideration is
then included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of the
contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Employee benefits
(a) Pension schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

(b) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered
the service. All short term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised in
respect for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholder. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.20 Leases

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of property for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. BEASHBXER(E
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued) 2.20 HEGE)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liabilities for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Payments associated with short-term
leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXREFTHEER(E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

2.21 Dividend distribution 221 RE DI
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders MARRERED IR EEREE
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated KARHKLENRNRESES
financial statements in the period in which the dividends (@A) EN RN A EE /LR
are approved by the Company’s or operating companies’ BB mEAERRAE -
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.22 Government grants 2.22 BF#BY

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
approach focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

REESE R RE I BRATREED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEUBHRRNE

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(1)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to variable-rate bank
balances and restricted bank deposits as
disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and bank borrowings
as disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rate. The Group
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the Group's fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits as disclosed in Note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and Hong Kong Prime
Rate quoted by the lending bank arising from
the Group’s HK$ denominated borrowings.
The Group aims at keeping borrowings at
variable rates. The Group currently does not
have a policy on hedging interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at each reporting period
end was outstanding for the whole year. A
100 basis point increase or decrease is used
which represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 100 points
(2022: 100 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 would increase/decrease by
HK$273,000 (2022: HK$384,000).

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for the exposure to interest rate risk on the
Group's bank balances and restricted bank
deposits as the directors of the Company
consider that the exposure is minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk mainly
arises from the fluctuation of HK$ against
the functional currency of a subsidiary of
the Company that has adopted Macau
Pataca (“MOP") as functional currency
and has foreign currency denominated
monetary assets denominated in HK$.
The management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure to mitigate the foreign
currency risk. As MOP is pegged to HK$, the
Group's foreign currency risk exposure is not
considered to be significant.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade
receivables, contract assets, other receivables and
deposits, pledged and restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts
of these balances except cash on hand in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged and
restricted bank deposits

The majority of the Group’s bank balances
are placed in financial institutions which are
independently rated with high credit ratings.
Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these financial institutions as they
have no default history in the past.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits

Other receivables and deposits are also subject to
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. It
is measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses. The Group also take
into account forward-looking information in the
impairment of the other receivables and deposits.
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the identified
impairment loss for other receivables and deposits
is assessed to be minimal.

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets without financing
components.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been assessed based on credit
risk characteristics of the customers with reference
to a wide range of factors such as default rates
of customers, aging profile of overdue balances,
the repayment and default histories of different
customers, on-going business relationship with
the relevant customers and forward-looking
information that affecting the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERME

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UBEREREGE
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEERBEEGE
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EEEE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) EZENHERSEE
(%)
At 31 December 2023, the Group had a E’\\\:;?:Ei-i—iﬂi"l'—
concentration of credit risk as approximately 62% CAEEE S ERRIE
(2022: 57%) of the total trade receivables was Z'E FBH62% (T - —&F
due from the Group's largest trade debtor and 57%) REAR KB HZAEFHE
approximately 99% (2022: 98%) of the total trade BA - ME S ERFKIBERE
receivables was due from the Group's five largest #499% (ZF % : 98%)
trade debtors. REAEBRAAXEZED
A A AEBNEERR
o
The Group has separated two customers (2022: TETHEBEEBER K~
two customers) with doubtful credit rating from EBEEMEEETRER]
the other customers with low risk credit rating in ROBEF(CE_ZF : B4
the determination of the expected credit losses B EAEMEETRAKE
and fully provided for the trade receivables of BOEFSRE - WREER
HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) for the Z 5 FE W3 I82,000,0007% 7T
prior year. For the remaining customers, the loss (ZZE =4 : 2,000,000/%
allowance at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were TOER 28 - LEME
determined as follows for trade receivables: )5 mME RZTEZ=FKk=
T _F+ZHAH=+—8"
B SREWFIENERREE
T :
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance amount impaired
RAEEE REAE BERE REFE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR S S
Trade receivables at R-B==%
31 December 2023 +ZA=1-H
28 AEWFE
Not past due KB 0.3% 16,928 (51) 16,877 No &
Within 30 days overdue BE30RA 0.6% 710 @ 706 No &
30 days to one year overdue BH0RE—F 1.5% 11,081 (166) 10,915 No %
Over one year overdue pHeA—F 2.9% 3,701 (107) 3,594 No £
Balances excluding two customers  BMARF{EL 2
fully provided for BEMIMYER 32,420 (328) 32,092
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

B s E b B 1 ()

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEAREZGE
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) =B E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) BZENAEREEE
6=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance amount impaired
EEEBEX  HREAE BERE  BETE  FERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Trade receivables at 31 R=BZZf
December 2022 +ZA=+-AH
ZE S EWHE
Not past due i 0.3% 27,152 (81) 27,071 No &
Within 30 days overdue BE0RA 0.6% 1,897 (12) 1,885 No &
30 days to one year overdue BE0RE—F 1.0% 309 B) 306 No &
QOver one year overdue BEEE—F 2.9% 3,701 (107) 3,594 No &
Balances excluding two customers  FtARARPIEH
fully provided for PEEREAN
K& 33,059 (203) 32,856

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets. The expected
credit losses below also incorporate forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the

receivables.
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Year ended 31 December 2023 BE T -=F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

3. BMEEREEGE)

3.1 MBEREEGE

Credit risk (Continued) (b) EFEEEGE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) B SN IE [ A 4B E
(&
The Group has separated four customers (2022: ANEFBETEHEEEIER
one customer) with doubtful credit rating from BNMZAERESETIANRE
the other customers with low risk credit rating P(ZEZ—ZF: —8%8F)
in the determination of the expected credit HEMABKEREETAD
losses and fully provided for the contract assets BESA MR —_T=—=
of HK$11,652,000 (2022: HK$686,000) at 31 F+-_A=+—HEHNEE
December 2023. For the other customers, the loss 11,652,000 L(ZE ==
allowance at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were £ : 686,000/ ) 1EH 2 &
determined as follows for contract assets. BiE pEMEPRPmME © R
—R_=—ER_FB—F+
—A=Z+—B " AHNEEE
BEEETNT -
Weighted
Gross average
carrying  expected Loss Net carrying
amount  lossrates  allowance amount
mE¥H
ARAE RAFE:E FBEREE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THEL TEL TEL
Contract assets at 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+=f
St-HWEHEE
Balances excluding four customers ROERPEL2HEE
fully provided for SAsh 2 70,311 2.13% (1,498) 68,813
Weighted
Gross average
carrying expected Loss  Net carrying
amount loss rates  allowance amount
MET
BERE BABEX  BEEE  REIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEx TR
Contract assets at 31 December 2022 R-B-Z%+ZA
St-BNENEE
Balances excluding a customer fully provided for R—BRPEL2HER
PASME AR 122,602 0.3% (367) 122,235
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MEREREREGE)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERKREERE
(c) Liquidity risk () HmEELEE
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management $ REAEZAERBESR
rests with the directors of the Company, who have BREIE CREEME - WEH
built an appropriate liquidity risk management AEBZEH - FHERE
framework for the management of the Group's EoEBEMADESERE
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity KEMVIEE 2 REE SRR
management requirements. The Group manages EIRER  c AEEBRFE
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and EREARERRERER
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring HE;T MBEERAENDH
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the BN BBBERRE  REE
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 1ﬁ FREREERBES
N
The table below analyses the Group’s financial T%Hﬁﬁglﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on REGEMBIRAKXBEE
the remaining period at the consolidated statement SAEIH B A FIeREIR 9 AL
of financial position date to the contractual ERER R BB R EIT AT -
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table THREBENSERS AR
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. WRIREME °
Total
Total contractual On demand Between
carrying  undiscounted or less 1and
amount cash flow than 1 year 2years
ENRRR RER
FEAE RefiaE FHME 1528
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn ThL Tén TEn
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=E+ZA=1-A
Trade and retention payables BHRMTERENRES 31,028 31,028 28499 2529
Other payables AERE 1,730 1,730 1,730 =
Bank borrowings B/IER 17,360 19,059 19,059 =
Lease liablities EEEN 1,046 1,086 864 w
Bank overdrafts BEX 9975 9,975 9,975 .
61,139 62,878 60,127 2,751
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3. BMEEREEGE)

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEERBEZEGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () HmEELEEE)
Total
Total contractual On demand Between
carmying undiscounted orless Tand
amount cash flow than 1 year 2 years
BIAIR BEX
REgE ReneR ZOMF 128
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000
T T T T
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-f=1-H
Trade and retention payables BARNVEREMNRES 40,863 40,863 33435 7428
Other payables AtERFE 1713 1713 1713 =
Bank borrowings RIAER 28798 28,889 28,889 =
Lease liabilties HERE 141 144 144 =
Bank overdrafts RTER 9,55 9,555 9,555 =
81,070 81,164 73,736 7428

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
At 31 December 2023, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of bank borrowings and
overdrafts amounted to approximately
HK$29,034,000 (2022: HK$38,444,000). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretionary
right to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank
borrowings and overdrafts will be repaid in one
year to ten years (2022: one year) after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank
borrowing agreements.

LWERIBIA DT - &

BREXKEEKIOBITHE
Kt ATHRERS D R14E]
FEfE4ER c RZE—=F 1
“A=+—8 " HITEXR
BYRARBRASREAL
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3. BMEEREEE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 FEEAREZEGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REELEEGE)
At 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2023 2022
—EC=F b e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBx FET
Within one year R—FR 19,156 38,444
1 to 2 years 1224 1,173 =
2 to 5 years 2FESHF 3,520 =
Over 5 years S5 E 5,185 =
29,034 38,444
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXEKBER

The Group manages capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

7R 4 B T B AR A R S
TEESHEHEQERESE .
REEAE LA RRRFEER
AR 01 35 7 o B 2 R
9 50 B4R FE AR I TR o
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. H¥%EEEEE)
(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EBEXREMREEE)
Total capital of the Group is calculated as total equity REBERBERTIZBRER INBE
plus total borrowings (including total interest-bearing R(BEFEEREEREERE)
borrowings and lease liabilities). The Group’s gearing FHE o AREMERAELEERTIR
ratio, which is calculated by dividing the total borrowings FEEEHNBERRABERT
by total equity at the year-end date. The gearing ratio of B - AEENEERRLENAT :
the Group was as follows:
At 31 December
R+=-A=+—-H
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total borrowings BER 28,381 38,494
Total equity g 65,663 101,626
Gearing ratio BERAGLL R 43.2% 37.9%

The gearing ratio increased from approximately 37.9%
at 31 December 2022 to approximately 43.2% at
31 December 2023, primarily due to the decrease in
total equity resulting from the decrease in retained
profits attributable to recording a net loss for the year
outweighed the decrease in the total interest-bearing
borrowings which was due to the decrease of drawdown
of revolving loans during the year ended 31 December
2023.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of the risk associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or repayment of existing debts.

BEBEBHEHR-_Z-_—_F+_f
=+ —HHA37.9%EME T =
=F+=A=1+—Hm443.2% *
FERRERBERY REAF
NFBEBEBRRB SR - B
HEZZ-_=F+=-A=+—H1t
FEBREFIRIERD - BHGT
BEZEERD -

ARREFE MR EARRE - %
R — B RARAEFTEES
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values of trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, trade and retention payables, accruals and
other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities
are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a)

Construction contracts

Management measures the progress towards completion
of the Group’s performance obligations based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of measuring the progress of each performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference to the value
of construction works completed to date as a portion
of the total contract value of the relevant construction
contracts. The management’s estimate of revenue and
the progress of construction works requires significant
judgement and has a significant impact on the amount
and timing of revenue recognised.

B s E b B 1 ()

3.3 AT EMGE

B 5 RUGRIR - B EUGKIARIZ
% BHRNFELENFRES
EETERAREMEN IR - RITHE
FEMERENREEREAYE
MEEMOBE - EARERR -
MBEAENRFENRAEERE
AR 75 T A RIS 60 B T 35 1) R
BRRAOEHRSREBMRMMAE

EEGRH AT KA

AL B RRIE LG REER - BN
SRHEATNEER  ROGEABRE
RER - SIBMTETREEANEER
BENKREEEEARABRIEARNG
At RREmA T

(a) EBESX

EEEBUNEL LA EARETKE
WEEREE  BEBR2RESE
SEREETRREEGRBZESD
B NEENID R R EEX
ERAVBETEEER NS - EHEE
R RELETREEFTESA
HE - WHE BRSNS
MEEEATE -
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Management periodically measures the value of the
construction works completed for each construction
project based on results as certified by external surveyors
or evaluated by internal project team and estimates the
value of works completed but yet to be certified at the
end of each reporting period. Management estimates
the value of uncertified works based on surveys carried
out by internal project team and certain projects maybe
revisited with reference to certification subsequently
performed by external surveyors. Management's
estimation of the value of the works may also be subject
to changes due to variations of works, claims or disputes
with customers. The Group regularly reviews and revises
the estimation of construction contract progresses
whenever there is any change in circumstances.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to
determine the expected credit loss for trade receivables
and contract assets. Significant judgement is exercised
on the assessment of the lifetime expected credit
losses for the trade receivables and contract assets (i.e.
ECL Assessment). For the ECL Assessment, the Group
has grouped trade receivables and contract assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and estimated
the expected credit losses allowance by considering a
wide range of factors such as aging profile of overdue
balances, the repayment and default histories of
different customers, the historical credit loss rates, the
post-year end subsequent settlements from respective
customers, on-going business relationship with the
relevant customers and forward-looking information that
affecting the customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances. At every reporting date, the expected credit
losses are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. Details of the
assumptions and inputs used are discussed in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

4. EEGE4E R E &)

(a)

(b)

BESHE

REREIR - ERERESNELR
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M ERIE B EBCGETTHRI B A EHRE
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BE - BEEHIREBEMNMEE
XTREE - REXERZFNUHD
Mal BT E - AEETE B
EH R EEMBERESDRER] AT

RESHHEE -
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S BEEE B RKFIAERAXN
BENEREEEE - FHESHE
WHREREHEENEHIEHREE
ERETEERAEHAIERER
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Deferred tax assets

The recognition of the deferred tax assets depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which such a reversal takes place.

Loss allowance for ECL

The management of the Group estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables and contract assets by
using various inputs and assumptions including but not
limited to risk of default. The estimation involves high
degree of uncertainty which is based on the Group's
historical information, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the actual outcome is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the profit
or loss and the carrying amount of trade receivables and
contract assets. If the ECL rates of the trade receivables
and contract assets between 1 and over 1 year past due
had been 10% higher (lower) at the end of the reporting
period, with other assumptions held constant, the loss
allowance would have been approximately HK$45,000
(2022: HK$17,000) higher (lower).

4. EEGEAE R E &

(9]

At TR EMENEERIR
EAFHEE

EENIRE EMERIURN AR K2
BEEER RN B R E R
8 o WARRERELENFIEER
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue is derived from the provision of supply,
installation, and fitting-out services of MVAC system for
buildings to external customers in Hong Kong and Macau
during the year. For the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the chief operating decision maker
reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group
as a whole prepared based on the accounting policies as set
out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has only one single operating segment and no further
analysis of this single segment is presented.

Wz & 7 BB & #

RSB0 KRB FARES SRS
BEFMBTIRHEEBR R ZEHE R
HHE - ZERKRERY - LERDE
REBHEMS - TREERRAEH
AEBNBEXRE RWHAIN(RIEZES
B BRRIM A2 E NS A BERE o
AEBEREE-—KED BN EZ25Z
B0 EmE DA o

Year ended 31 December

BE+TZA=1+T—BLFE

2023 2022
=== ===

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Revenue from construction contracts A O 114,570 184,020
The Group’s revenue is recognised over time for the years REEZZT_=FR=-ZFT-Z_F+=A

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. =E+—RIEFE  AEERRKREER

Unsatisfied construction contracts REITEEEN

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance E/\\f ZEERZFIZF+ZA=F

obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December NEEEHR TRAOEECREKRLE D

2023 and 2022 and the expected timing of recognising
revenue are as follows:

%%W)Wi%{%&ﬁﬁ Bk 25 ) FE HA By )
wmr

At 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2023 2022
—EBE=F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Revenue from construction contracts 1T HERAEES K s

to be recognised

Within one year —FR 157,492 116,797

More than one year BB —F 54,289 =
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue

from external customers based on geographical location of the
customers:

Wz & 7 &R E (&)

I E R

TREIRBEFEPHEME IR A E

BN PR AT

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022

—EC=F =B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBx FET
Hong Kong B 102,677 144,673
Macau JEPY 11,893 39,347
114,570 184,020

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-
current assets, excluding deferred income tax assets, analysed
by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

TERAREEMEMNMEMES DA
MBEETEREEMEREE) NI

EEDH :

At 31 December

BR+=-—A=+—H

2023 2022

—E_=F ===
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong &E 1,185 235
Macau JEF 55 277
1,240 5112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERME

Year ended 31 December 2023 #;

BE-_T_—HF+_A=+—HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W@k abER(
(Continued)
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total REAAEEEMABWZI10% U EHE
revenue of the Group are as follows: Pz
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE
2023 2022
—E-=F e = e
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FHT
Customer A EFPA 80,463 98,290
Customer B =B 20,723 35,857
Customer C ®PC Noteff{&F 35,802
Note: Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total Wi BEZZTE-_=F+-A=+—H1t
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023. FEEPREINAERBLENZER
10% °
OTHER INCOME, NET 6. Htg AR
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —_=E-_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Bank interest income RITHBEHBA 280 133
Government subsidies (Note) B B (BT a2) - 5,587
Net exchange loss HE X B 18 H 5 (3) (68)
277 5,652
Note: The amounts represented the anti-epidemic fund received Kt . SBEEBBEERBMN KRR F

from the Hong

Kong SAR government and the Macau SAR

government amounted to HK$5,587,000 for the year ended 31

December 2022.

ERNBE-_T-_—_F+=-A=
+—BHLFEESHHELNEES

5,587,000 7T ©
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EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. BMEEISWEEX

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E_= —E—_—
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Costs of materials IS N 46,601 74,717
Subcontractor costs DB A 49,427 88,830
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) BB &FFXZ (Ha9)
— Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) —BE=HMEEI0) 8,581 7,812
- Direct labour —HEST 10,797 16,147
— Administrative staff —fTRET 3,371 3,224
Provision of impairment losses B 5 RWHIERE
on trade receivables, net e B F R 126 205
Provision of impairment losses SHEERE
on contract assets, net BB B R F R 12,098 15
Write-off of contract assets BHEEMHE 11,207 =
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI 257 A
- Audit services — B RTE 710 680
- Non-audit services — IERZEPRTS 22 22
Depreciation of plant and s Kt e
equipment (Note 14) (HiaF14) 160 284
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15) f&FR#EZEITE (K7£15) 786 727
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEERHEED
short-term leases of rented premises KEMEERS
(Note 15) (MtaF15) 1,725 323
Legal and professional fees FEREXER 2,512 2,681
Travelling expenses ZIRFX 364 484
Other expenses HAR X 4,816 5,506
153,303 201,657
FINANCE COSTS 8. R
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-—BA=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—_E_= —_E_—
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F# T FET
Finance costs B RR AR
— Interest on bank borrowings —IRITIE T E 1,145 1,340
— Interest on bank overdrafts —IRITELFE 592 462
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) —HERERSHF15) 66 28
1,803 1,830
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9. EER/ABX

Year ended 31 December
HEZE+-HA=1t—HLEE

2023 2022

—_E_= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances TE - He - AL RER 22,361 26,577
Pension cost — defined contribution scheme R &R A — R E kst 2] 388 606
22,749 27,183

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes at the lower of HK$1,500 per month or 5% of
relevant payroll costs each month to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
for eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$388,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$606,000)
represents contributions paid and payable by the Group
at rates as specified in the respective rules of the above
mentioned schemes.

A& E 2 BARE R B RTE S5 &K
PR MBIt B S ([REEE
g DEMOEREREE - ZFTENE
ERAKENEEDRATE  ARBTEA
NESHE - LB EKEMS -
AEE & AR1,5005% 7T 348 BE # B AK
R 2Z25% ARIKE R2%E) MR TE S 58It
;o MEETELRSSEER -

AEBRRFIEEREERENAEHER
BAFTE - ZEtENEERBIULEFRA
EENETEARBORER - fR—
BN AEEFEEMNREE - #
RN BEHERHEEBRAMFEX » AR
% 5 B B0 A5 B R BB L 5K A B B AT & A
PR W R TR D o

BE—_T-_=%+-A=1+—HItFE
RIB s MR A B S 48%8388,0008 7T (=
T — —4F : 606,000/870)IEANEEE
mErSIARER BT BNREEN R E
EIHEER o
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: two
directors), details of whose remunerations are set out in
Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining highest paid
employees who are neither director nor chief executive officer
of the Company are as follows:

95

EER/ABEX ()
AERBHFHAL

res = = Gsae s B = --— [B] [le4E
B AEERELEEaFHIALREMS
EE(CE—F WMBES)  HEN
MFBENGRETERMEMEI0 - F
N EEsTiiEE (WIERARFTES
REEITHAB)WFHEFBOT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2023 2022

—_E_= ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH# T FHET
Salaries and other benefits Fre kEMmEF 2,504 2,492
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme R K48FIzH &I X 54 54
2,558 2,546

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
director or chief executive officer of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

UHARREERSSTEASBHMH
BR A TR0 855 5 e St B
mF

Number of employees

EE%A
2023 2022
—_E_-= =EEE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

FR - AREHREBERAARBAEERES
s MAL(BREERES) M
T ERIMAZEIMARE B & ) 2R X
TERBERFE -
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Year ended 31

]RME

December 2023 HZEZ =T =

=+ A=t+—HLEHFE

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10. EEFERER(BREFA(D
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 ARG (BB EHIE622FE) %
OF THE CO (CAP.622) AND COMPANIES 3BHEEA AT (HEESF =
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT ERD BB (FBEHIE622G
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION BE)NEREE)

(CAP.622G)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (included as key () ESEMEGIAEAZTEEEER
management compensation) )
The remuneration of the directors is set out below: BEEZEHFMETIOT
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—E-=#F+=-HF=+—Hi
FE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HTES BUFHTES
Mr. Chung
Chi Keung Ms. Lai Mr. Choy Mr. Lai
("Mr. Chung")* Suk Fan Hiu Fai, Eric Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total
ETHkE
([ExE])* Y108 BEELE %4 REHLE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tan Tan Tan Tan Tan Tan
Fees k3 = = 180 180 180 540
Other emoluments e
~ Salaries and other benefits ~FEREMEH 4,975 1,235 = = = 6210
- Discretionary bonus -BEl 1,120 675 = = = 1,95
- Contribution to retirement ~RINERIEEIf S
benefits scheme - 36 - = - 36
Total it 6,095 1,946 180 180 180 8,581
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+-_A=+—HALFE

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383

OF THE CO (CAP.622) AND COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP.622G) (Continued)

10. EEFmKkESZ(REFE(R
AR B (BB EDISE622F) 5E
383 RAARA(WEES M=
ERDRA) (FREHE622G
B)WERKE) (8)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (included as key
management compensation) (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(a)

EEMEGIAERTEEERER
) (&)

BE—E-_—_F+-H=+—HI
FE

Executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

HES BUFaTES
Ms. Lai Mr. Choy Mr. Lai

Mr. Chung* Suk Fan Hiu Fai, Eric Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total

Ertr  BSLE EEARE AREE  BEBEE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tin Fin Fir Fir Fin Fin

Fees Be - a 180 180 180 540

Other emoluments Ko

- Salaries and other benefits -4 REMET 4976 1,235 = = = 6211

- Discretionary bonus ~MiEfa 440 585 = = = 1,025
- Contribution to retirement ~RIVEFIEF B

benefits scheme = 36 - - - 36

Total et 5416 1,856 180 180 180 7812

* Mr. Chung is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference
to the Group’s operating results and individual
performance.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during both years.

& BEERBEE_ZTZ_=ZFK_F%
——F+—_A=F—HIEEES
AEEMITHRE -

BBIEA N2 ERRENRERA
REARBEMETRE

REE-_Z_=FR_FT_—F+
ZAZ+—HLEE  AEELEK
MARREEZMMESIERMAR
EEMNFEIMALEBRZNFR
SEABRMAE - RMEFER -
MEZESTHRAHRERBER
EE ST -
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Year ended 31

]RME

December 2023 E—E-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383

OF THE CO (CAP.622) AND COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP.622G) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

Save as disclosed in Note 10(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company did
not receive any other retirement benefits or termination
benefits during the year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available the directors’ services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors

At 31 December 2023, there are no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors of the Company or its holding company, bodies
corporate controlled by and connected entities with such
directors (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

10.

EENEkEx(REEE(R
BB (BB EHISE622F) 5F
383 RAARA(HKEESH &
ERBR R (TR ZEHIF622G
B)NWERHKE) (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ESHNRAEFNRERER

BRiZA M IEHRERMFE10()FTHE
EON - AR R EBRE AL EIER
1 fA] H 4t 3R R 48 1) ok B B 4 ) (=
T F @)
MESEEREMOE=FRMEN
RE

BHE_T_=F+_A=+—H1t
FE AEEVERESEERY
mMEEEHE= X HRECE=
—E ) o

FHEUESRAZBANEN - X8
REEMZ 5 HER

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—8 ' #
BUARNRIZERRELR AT - E
ENRIEHEE RIS ER AR
HANER EERREAR SR
(T F 8| o

EERXS  ZHHEHNFHEKX
R

BRERE B AR M 28T B &
SN ARREEHMENFRIEE
—E_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE
I B R BN AREBEART
HFHBERAEBERBENEAR
5 BERAHNTRHEREE S HE
MEAER(CTE—F : &) -



11. INCOME TAX CREDIT
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11. FTERER

RiFEEERAERATANMEHRER

The amount of income tax credit credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

T8

Year ended 31 December
BEZE+-ZA=1+—HILEE

2023 2022
—EB-= —EF-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current income tax: BIHARR1S A -
Hong Kong profits tax EENEH
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 606 =
Macau complementary tax SBPIFTIS 7R = 50
606 50
Deferred income tax (Note 23) BEFTISEL(at23) (4,960) (2,666)
Income tax credit TSt (4,354) (2,616)

(i) Hong Kong profits tax

(i) FBEINEH

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%), and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5% (2022:16.5%). The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

R—ZZE—NE=ZA=_+—H8B" &
BLEAERBAT—LERBUS
FD(E75) ([ZERD) - 5l AR
FIISMERE - ZAERRZT—
NFZAZ+NHEERAEEZE
BRBEHAZER - BRBEMARF
BHEE GEKEEERENE
2,000,0007% 7T 4 F1 # LA8.25% (=
T 8.25%)HUFE REF
im#83E2,000,00078 JT 5 F # A
16.5%(ZFE=-—F : 16.5%) 8%
KT o REFEMAFEH K
FIEERMNEBERA R FEE
B2 E16.5% (T = —F
16.5%) & #% °
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 1.

(i) Macau Complementary Tax

Pursuant to a tax incentive approved under Section 20 of
Decree Law No. 11/2016, Macau Complementary Tax is
levied at a fixed rate of 12% (2022: 12%) on the taxable
income above MOP600,000 (approximately HK$582,000)
of the Group’s operations in Macau.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

FrieBiE® ()
(i) RPIFFEWEB

BERFIESE11/201655 520
EFTHEC RISER - BPIFTE
78 B 4R 3B600,0008 PI & (49
582,000 7T) By 2N & B R PT 2 75
HERRBAZI2ZN(ZE ==
F 0 12%) BT EEK -

FAMSHRERA RGE 2R KA
FERATS B AT BT IR E AR AT

Year ended 31 December
HEZE+Z-ZHA=1t—HLEE

2023 2022

—E-= T i
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTER FHET
Loss before income tax BrPTIS T AT E 18 (40,259) (13,815)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax rates RERAREFENHIE (5,956) (2,649)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose AT HF B 2 1,022 986
Income not subject to tax HRRBUA (2) (970)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 606 -
Others Hit (24) 17
Income tax credit Fristig o (4,354) (2,616)
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+-_A=+—HALFE

12. DIVIDENDS 12. KB
No dividend was declared or paid by the Company during the ARABRBE_ZE_=F+-H=+—
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). HEFETES kI MEMRE(ZE
—ZF |
13. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREXRBEEER
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss FREAREBBIEAQAEES ARLER
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted BRAFASETEBRNETSEGE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. B -
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-=F g
Loss attributable to owners of RRAREB ANEGEE
the Company (in HK$'000) (F#&T) (35,905) (11,199)
Weighted average number of BT E BRI T 58
ordinary shares in issue 162,250,000 162,250,000
Basic loss per share BRENREE
(HK cents per share) (BRI (22.13) (6.90)
Diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share since BREEEESESNERELREE BB

the Company has no dilutive potential shares during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

AAARBE_B-=F+=A=+—
B IE4F 8 A AR B AR IR () (=
To_F @) -

=
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. HBERRE
Furniture
Motor and office
vehicles equipment Machinery Total
BRE
AE WAERE B Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TExT FAT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-BE-__f+ZH
=+-BLEFE
At 1 January 2022 RZEBE--F—H—H 229 276 - 505
Exchange differences ERER Q) M - )
Additions NE 5 28 129 157
Depreciation neE (160) (121) 3) (284)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—&#+-A
=1+—H 68 182 126 376
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE--%+ZA
=t+-H
Cost B% 1,209 805 129 2,143
Accumulated depreciation e (1,141) (623) 3) (1,767)
Net book amount EEFE 68 182 126 376
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-B-=f+=R
=+-HLEEE
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=%F—Hf—H 68 182 126 376
Exchange differences EHRER 1 = = 1
Depreciation e (43) (91) (26) (160)
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=%+=A
== 26 91 100 217
At 31 December 2023 R-Z-=%+=A
Sr=[
Cost 2% 1,209 805 129 2,143
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (1,183) (718) (29) (1,926)
Net book amount REFE 26 91 100 217

During the year ended 31 December 2023, depreciation
of HK$160,000 (2022: HK$284,000) were charged to
“administrative expenses” and “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

BE_FT_=F+-_HA=t—BHL*%F
€ - #rE 160,000/ (=T = —4F :

284,000/ 7T) IR 4R %Euﬁzmi‘%mfﬁﬂz
A I R EERA IR -
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. LEASES 15. 8
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (i) MEERGESHBEMRRARBIANS
of financial position relating to leases 6l
2023 2022
—EB-=F = el
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBx T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
At 1 January n—H—H 136 863
Additions NE 1,673 -
Depreciation e (786) (727)
At 31 December w+=—A=+—H 1,023 136
Cost AR 3,741 2,068
Accumulated depreciation EFtine (2,718) (1,932)
Net book amount BRTEFE 1,023 136
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current B 826 141
Non-current FERED 220 =
1,046 141
During the year ended 31 December 2023, additions to BE-_ZT-_=F+ZA=+—
the right-of-use assets were HK$ 1,673,000 (2022: Nil). HIEFEE  RENEAEER F

1,673,000 (= F - —
) ©
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Year ended 31

15. LEA

(i)

(iii)

December 2023 HE—E-=F+-A=+—HILFE

SES (Continued) 15. HE (&)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (i) MREERGFETEURZREINS
of comprehensive income relating to leases ]
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—HILEE
2023 2022
—E-= —=E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF FET FHET
Depreciation of right-of- FREEENE -
use assets — office premises FIE/NEX Y/ ES
and staff quarters ;EIE®
(included in cost of sales and  (GFASHE Ak A& &
administrative expenses) THAX) 7 786 727
Interest expense (included in FMERX
finance costs) (T ABFFE R AR) 8 66 28
Expense related to short-term  E352 B E BRI X
leases (included in cost (FFASHE A K
of sales and administrative THAX)
expenses) 7 1,725 323

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total
cash outflow for leases were HK$2,559,000 (2022:
HK$1,089,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases office premises and staff quarters.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1
to 2 years with no extension option.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

(iii)

HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—H
HEFEFE BHEMNBESRLLRE
42,559,000 L (T -4 :
1,089,000/ 7T) °

FEENEEEFHRAARLSR

AEERHEHRAMRLAEMERELR
&  MAO—REZ2FNEEF
HARTS. - NREEH -

HEGFZENEEHGAAESS
AR R R - HE R &
HEAMEMZRAY - R EEEMIER
RamABBEARE  HEEETHE
REERMERR -
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

16. CONTRACT ASSETS

16. ENEE

At 31 December

Ra= A= Tl E
2023 2022
—E_= =
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Construction contracts BEAY 81,963 123,288
Less: Provision for impairment loss allowance &, : J8i (B &5 18 & (13,150) (1,053)
68,813 122,235

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditional on the Group’s future performance.
Included in contract assets are retention receivables. Retention
receivables arise from the Group’s construction project and
are held by customers in order to provide the customers
with assurance that the Group will complete its obligations
satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to provide
financing to the customers. They are generally settled within a
period ranging from one to two years upon the completion of
construction work. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional. The Group
typically reclassifies contract assets to trade receivables on the
date of payment certificates issued by the customers when
such right of collections becomes unconditional other than the
passage of time.

At the end of the reporting period, the contract assets that
are expected to be recovered after more than 12 months are
HK$20,100,000 (2022: HK$18,973,000), which represented
the retention receivables. The remaining contract assets are
expected to be recovered within 12 months.

BHEETREAKERCRT KRM
R IREBMREZENEH  BA&
BANBURRAEENBRERE - NE
EERRERESE - BRUREESHESE
BARB RERBLBEFRAR &
NAEFREAREHRIEA KM E
EREME MAEFRATFREERE - —
MRBETIRRIENT —FEMFERA
BN - BRI BEGRTR > a0E
EBREESRNFE - AKEBEE
BEPBRENREEE BEZBFENK
SEHRE(EEREBERINEKELQ
BEEHNDERBESHRIGOA -

REEER - FEET BB 12ME A Bk E
MALEER20,100,0008 T(—F =
— 4 118,973,000 7T) © FEEKIRE
© - FIHRENEERBEN12MEA Rk
@ o
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

16. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 16.

The movements of contract assets (before loss allowance and
excluding those arising from increases and decrease both
occurred within the same year) from contracts with customers
within HKFRS 15 during the years are as follows:

BRNEEE

RAFEEBTHRELANF1HATE
ZEPAHNMAKNEEZEHHNKER
BEM  TERER-—FERNELZIEM
SR sl Bz 28T

2023 2022

—EC=F T %

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THxT T

At 1 January n—A—H 123,288 118,403
Transferred to trade receivables WEEE D E W IE (36,280) (27,007)
Recognition of revenue W Z5HERR 6,162 31,892
Write-off of contract assets (Note) EHBEME W) (11,207) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 81,963 123,288

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, contract assets are
written off upon finalisation of projects with customers which
the management of the Group considered that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery on certain construction work
completed by the Group.

Movements in the loss allowance on contract assets are as

Hiet - BE-Z-=F+-"A=+—HIF
B ANEBEEREEPERIER KM
- MAKEERERS  ~EEE
TEREE TRETRY EAERAWR
[B] o

BREEBRBENEZFHNT

follow:

2023 2022
—E:== ===

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
At 1 January w—HA—H 1,053 1,042
Provision for impairment loss REBERE 12,098 15
Exchange differences EHEZR (1) 4
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—8H 13,150 1,053

Details of the impairment assessment for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

BE_Z_=fK_FT-_—F+-_A=
+—HIEFEERRESGEFEBHRR LGS
SRR EE3.1(b) ©



16. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

17.

The retention receivables (net of loss allowance) to be settled,
based on the expiry of retention period, at the end of the

reporting period are:

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited

Annual Report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MEMBHRMWE

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+-_A=+—HALFE

16. SNEE(E)

RBEHRR - REREZHERFEFTN
FE AR Bl & CRER B IR R /& -

2023 2022

—EC=F = il
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F RN H 6,252 16,700
After one year —F 1% EI|HA 20,100 18,973
26,352 35,673

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

ANKE

17. ESREMEBRRE RER

At 31 December

INTrEEIETr=E
2023 2022
—E-=HE e S ==
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Trade receivables (Note i) Z 5 e WGRIE (FTaEi) 34,420 35,059
Less: Provision for impairment loss allowance J& : J&({E /&5 18 % &5 (2,328) (2,203)
32,092 32,856
Other receivables and deposits (Note i) H b e sk TE R iR e (K aFii) 998 1,323
Prepayments FE 8 1,338 1,487

34,428

35,666
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Year ended 31

]RME

December 2023 E—E-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

0]

Trade receivables

Trade receivables arise from the provision of supply,
installation and fitting-out services of MVAC system for
buildings. The Group grants a credit period ranged from
30 to 45 days to its customers. The following is an aging
analysis of trade receivables based on valuation dates
of payment certificates or reports net of provision for
impairment loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period:

17. ESREMEBRRE - RER
TR RRIE (&)

() EZEURE

Z 5 WG IERR RIS F B
B REHRFRREE TR REE
RS - AEEREBZFRENEER
BN F30H E45H « TX AR
SHRR IR BB RS A E R
HmE 5 e kI8 ER Bk o AT G0 B
WIEE B

At 31 December

R+=HA=+-—H
2023 2022
—E-=F Ty =

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 10,491 11,453
31 to 60 days 31£60H 6,386 17,069
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,294 740
91 to 180 days 91%180H 4,055 -
181 to 365 days 1815 365H 6,272 -
Over 1 year HRiB—F 3,594 3,594
32,092 32,856

The fair value of trade receivables approximate their B o REKGEN AT EEEREE

carrying values.

HHE o
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+-_A=+—HALFE

17. ESREMEBRRE RER
R RIE (&)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

85 BWRE

(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

B 5 BB 3R A R T A T
SE

At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2023 2022
—EC=F =2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 27,523 23,026
MOP SR PR 4,569 9,830
32,092 32,856

Before accepting any new customers, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits granted to customers are
reviewed periodically. Management of the Group closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and
considers the majority of the Group’s trade receivables
that are past due but not impaired have good credit
quality with reference to respective settlement history.

BEMERHELA  AREENG
BEEFPHEEEARRREFAE
FERE  YERRIRTEFH
EERRE AKEEEETIER
BHRUHFENEEEER - YRR
MERAE T RRER - RRAKEAI D
EEMERBIERN B 5 UGB
EEEERY -
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Year ended 31

]RME

December 2023 E—E-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

0]

(i)

. BEERHEMEBWFIER  BER

TR RRIE (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEKRRKEGE
Movements of the provision for impairment loss B S EWGIAREEERENE
allowance on trade receivables are as follows: AR
2023 2022
—E_= —_F_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
At 1 January w—HA—H 2,203 2,008
Impairment loss recognised EERBIEBE 126 205
Exchange differences EHER (1) (10)
At 31 December BR+=—A=+—8H 2,328 2,203
Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 BE_ZT_=FR-ZF-__F+=
December 2023 and 2022 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to A=+—HI-FERNBEFEFE
the consolidated financial statements. BRGRE T BRERMES. 1) °
Other receivables and deposits (i) HEWRERRZRS

The fair value of other receivables and deposits

approximate their carrying values.

Details of impairment assessment for the other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to

the consolidated financial statements.

Hip YRR RIE SRR FERE
AREEMES -

HE-ZE-_=GFR-_F-_—_F+=
B=+—HILFE @ HaEKRIA
Mz R EF EFBHR G
TERRMIFE3. () °
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18. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 18. EEH R SRS TERUR
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HeERBEESEEY

At 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2023 2022
—EC=F —E_—

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET THET

Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIFR 7,102 7,000

Restricted bank deposits SRR BISRITIER 2,306 2,242

9,408 9,242

Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 6,014 12,047

Bank overdrafts (Note 21) RITEZ (B7E21) (9,975) (9,555)
Balances per consolidated statement of FEREREREINNNERS

cash flows (3,961) 2,492

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
(including overdraft and trade facilities) with maturity within
one year from the end of the reporting period and is therefore
classified as a current asset. The pledged bank deposits carried
interest at a fixed rate at 3.50% per annum at 31 December
2023 (2022: 1.55% per annum).

The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks as
security for due performance under several service contracts of
MVAC system for buildings with prevailing market interest rate
ranging from 4.01% to 4.35% per annum at 31 December
2023 (2022: 0.125% to 3.18% per annum) (Note 26).

BRI EREE R FRITUER
AEBERRTEEREEIRES
BE)MER - REBEBHRBH —FNRN
HE - AREOEARDEE -R=-F
—=ZF+-A=+—8  o&#ETE
FIE3 S0%MEEFFEFE(ZEZ
F : FF|E1.55%) °

ZRHBITFERIETHRRBITHES -
EREFHBBRANEARFNE TR
BAHNBHRESER R =
F+-_A=T—HMRITMBEMNEN
T4.01%24.35% (T - —F : FH=X
0.125%%3.18%) (fif26) o
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Year ended 31 December 2023 BE T -=F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of pledged and restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents (net of bank overdrafts)
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

18. ERHRZRFIBITEITAR
ReRASSEYWE)

ERARZROBTEFRIERE MRS
EEMEHIBRRTEDNREEEQF
BRE LA TIEEEHE :

At 31 December

R+=—B=+—8
2023 2022
—=E2-_= —ET-=
HK$"000 HK$'000
THxT TFET
HK$ BT 5,050 11,507
MOP SEPY 397 227
5,447 11,734

19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

19. EZRENRERENREE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—-H

2023 2022

—E-=F i S b
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Trade payables B S e 5RIE 24,616 26,048
Retention payables FERE S 6,412 14,815
31,028 40,863

The credit period of trade payables granted by subcontractors
and suppliers ranges from 30 to 60 days upon the issue of
invoices or application of interim payment generally.

DERRHERMLE S ENREREDN
EEH-—RNFHAEBRZRAFT RN

FIE30E60H o
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19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 19. EZEARERENRESE
(Continued) (&)
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based A5 SR B RE A B A ER A
on the invoice dates or the dates of application of interim FKBBUER) N E 5 ENFRIEREK D
payment, as appropriate: #

At 31 December

R+=BA=+-—H
2023 2022
—E-=F g
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 9,909 12,654
31 to 60 days 31260H 3,916 5,470
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,729 3,513
91 to 180 days 91£180H 4,650 3,077
181 days to 1 year 181AE—F 1,226 >
Over 1 year iR — 2,186 1,334
24,616 26,048
Retention payables to subcontractors are interest-free and B EENRES 2B RERESR
payable at the end of the defect liability period of individual EBHRIEITER(—RABBEIEE TK
contracts, normally one year from the completion date of the HEfERT— ) 2 fT o

respective project.



152 HREKEDNERARE
CRO-FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERME

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE T -=F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 19. EZENREREMARES
(Continued) (4&)

The retention payables are expected to be settled, based on
the expiry date of the defect liability period, at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

RigRIEMERBEY - BARESTAH
REERROGEBERAT

At 31 December

R+=—B=+—8

2023 2022

—E-=F ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Due within one year —FEAFIE 3,883 7,387
Due after one year —FI1&E|H 2,529 7,428
6,412 14,815

5 & R IR K A R [B] & B B o B £
HAFERSE  AATIIEEE :

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

At 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8
2023 2022
—E_=HF o
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
HK$ BT 24,438 32,903
MOP SRPT 6,590 7,960

31,028 40,863
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20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 20. HitnENRERETTER
EXPENSES
At 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2023 2022
—EC=F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBx FET
Accrued staff costs JEET 8 TR 3,997 3,548
Other accrued charges Hitnfgzt &M 1,447 1,364
Other payables H fth fE < 5018 283 349
5,727 5,261

Other payables and accrued expenses are denominated in the

following currencies:

Hih R IB RE B AU T E B

1B :

At 31 December

BR+=-—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT AT
HK$ BT 4,799 4,345
MOP SR PR 928 916
5,727 5,261
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21. BANK BORROWINGS

21. SRITERK

At 31 December

R+=—B=+—8
2023 2022
—_E_= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Secured: BEA
- Bank borrowings —IRITIER 17,360 28,798
— Bank overdrafts - R17EY 9,975 9,555
27,335 38,353

The fair value of the bank borrowings approximates their
carrying amount as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The bank borrowings and overdrafts due for repayment are as

MR EMTRE - MRITERE

ATERERE B -

RITERPEXDHEENBERAT ¢

follows:
At 31 December
R+=—RA=+—8
2023 2022
—_E_= =R =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
On demand or within one year RERIN—FA 27,335 38,353

The bank borrowings at 31 December 2023 carried interest
either at 2.5% below Hong Kong Prime Rate or at Hong Kong
Prime Rate plus interest rate at 0.5% (2022: Hong Kong Prime
Rate plus interest rate ranging from 0.25% to 0.5%). The
effective interest rate on the bank borrowings (which is also
equal to contracted interest rate) is ranging from 3.5% to
6.625% per annum (2022: 5.25% to 6.125% per annum). The
bank overdrafts at 31 December 2023 carried interest at Hong
Kong Prime Rate and the effective interest rate is ranging from
5.875% to 6.125% per annum (2022: 5.25% to 5.875% per
annum). The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in
HK$.

RZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H - R17E
SIRER BB HEEFE2.5% K F &=k,
BEBREBRFENM.5%MF R E
ZECF  HEREEBENENM.25%
F0.5%) RITEFNERFNE(TER
BHREINTEF3.5%%6.625% (=
T F  FHE525%F6.125%) o B
—E-=%+-A=+—8 RTEX

EEBREBEAETS -
F5.875%%6.125%

BEIRFH =N
S

=

F

FE|5 25%%5.875%)  AEBRTT

fERABTTRER °
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H{ZE =T =-=F+=-A=+—HILFE

21. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, a bank borrowing is secured by
a corporate guarantee of HK$47,971,000 given by the
Company, by personal guarantee of a director, Mr. Chung
of HK$30,000,000 and the property held by a director, Mr.
Chung. Another bank borrowing is secured by personal
guarantee of a director, Mr. Chung of HK$9,000,000.

At 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings were secured
by a corporate guarantee of HK$57,971,000 as given by the
Company, by personal guarantee of a director, Mr. Chung of
HK$30,000,000 and a former shareholder of HK$10,000,000.

Analysis of the amounts due based on scheduled payment
dates set out in the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of
any repayment on demand clause) is as follows:

21. BITERGE)

R-ZBE-_=%+=-B=+—8 ' ' —&
BITRERBEARAEAENAGER
47,971,000/ 7T « EHELEHEMNE
AFE1R30,000,0005 T R EERE L AR
ERMERER - Z—SRTERHE
FiB A H AR E A $E1£9,000,000/%5 7T
{EHIR o

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H - RI17E
FAEARQRHAMNRRHERS7,971,000
BT EEBEAELAENEAER
30,000,000 7T & B B 3R ) EL A 1) A 42
£%10,000,00078 ST YEIE I o

RIBE I3 A8 RO TRRE (4 50 A H3 (72
B AR ZRER GO E) D ME R

T

At 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2023 2022
—E=-= =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 18,833 38,353
1 to 2 years 1E224F 880 =
2 to 5 years 2E5F 2,838 =
Over 5 years tBIASF 4,784 =

27,335 38,353
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

0}

Share capital

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued

22. BAR#E
() M=
AATMEE & O BTE A

ordinary share capital are as follows: WEBWT
Nominal Number
value per share of shares Total
SREE Ko #E @
HK$'000
TAT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—F#—f—H HK$0.01
0.01%7C  100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Effect of share consolidation (Note a) ROEHNTEW s HK$0.03
0.03%7T (75,000,000,000) =
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 RZBZZ&+ZA
and 31 December 2023 =+-B -ZE-=F
—A-RAR=%==F HK$0.04
+=ZA=+-H 0.04%8 T 25,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—F—f—H HK$0.01
0.0 649,000,000 6,490
Effect of share consolidation (Vote a) Rin &t 2 (Wita) HK$0.03
0.03TT (486,750,000) -
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 R-Z-—F+-F
and 31 December 2023 Sar=lg =S
—A—-HBRZBZ=Zf§ HK$0.04
+=ZA=+-H 0.04%8 T 162,250,000 6,490
Note: Btat

(a) On 21 January 2022, every four (4) issued and unissued
existing shares of the Company of par value of HK$0.01
each were consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of

par value of HK$0.04 each.

(a)

RZEZZF—A=+—H ' &
NEIEMHA)REREE.0E T
ME BT RABITHEERME G
B—(NEREREEC.04BTHE
BERRAD ©
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22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

(i) Reserves

(a)

(b)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the waived dividends
declared and approved by the Company to the
shareholders in 2017, which are deemed as capital
contribution from shareholders and credited to the
capital reserve of the Company.

Other reserve

Other reserve of the Group represented the
difference between the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation
as completed in December 2016 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax assets
for financial reporting purposes:

22. BRA K f#E (&)

(i) f#E

(a)

(b)

B HE

BEARRBEARAN T —
T FRRRE IR &AL F#
BB - ARRIARR AR
RWEAREYFHALRRTA
BARGEHE -

Hfhl#lE

AEBEMBERBERER =
E-RET-_ATKNER
PfT U B3 B B8 22 B O AR AN AR
RAEIFAAIRTN E AT
EEMNER -

23. IREFTEHEE

AT RBEMBRRAENETRER

BEDMN

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—EB-= =
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred income tax assets BREFTEIHEE 10,697 5,737
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 23. BREMEHEE (B
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of deferred income tax assets INTARFEFABRRINELCMSHEER
recognised and their movements during the year: HEsH o7 -
Expected
credit loss
provision Tax losses Total
EHEE
EEEE HIEEE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FET FHT
At 1 January 2022 RN-ZE-_—_F—H—H 293 2,778 3,071
Credited to consolidated statement s A4R& & E KR
of comprehensive income 34 2,632 2,666
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+=-—RA=+—H 327 5,410 5,737
Credited to consolidated statement  FF ALRA E2HE KX
of comprehensive income 1,713 3,247 4,960
At 31 December 2023 R=B==F
ap—=Z SN ) 2,040 8,657 10,697

Despite the Group has suffered losses in the current period, a
deferred tax asset arising from the unused tax losses has been
recognised in excess of the profits arising from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences. The Group has
concluded that the deferred tax asset will be recoverable using
the estimated future taxable income based on the approved
business plans and budgets. The Group is expected to generate
taxable income from 2024 onwards. The recognised tax losses

will expire as follows:

BEAEERNAHHESSER  BEAXR
RAHEBEMELNREEREEE 2
BREHKEROREERVE R EH
A e ARER L AR EERAER
ERRBELENEBKAEREE - £
AT AR IR R T W e T AN - FRE
AEBEKE —T - NFREEBRBU
& o DR ZBABRKNIA TR
Hj

At 31 December

+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—EC=HE —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Year 2026 BN 6,875 =
No expiry fmEAMR 47,464 32,788

54,339 32,788
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+-_A=+—HALFE

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 24. IREHEISWEME TR

At 31 December

INTEEISR=[E
2023 2022
—EB-= —EF-—
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BN AT 2N IS EE
- Trade receivables (Note 17) — B S RWKIEA R E17) 32,092 32,856
— Other receivables and deposits (Note 17)  — E#bEWFIE M xS
(Hia17) 998 1,323
~ Pledged and restricted bank deposits — B RZRE
(Note 18) RITERHTE18) 9,408 9,242
- Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) —HeRRSEEY
(H1a£18) 6,014 12,047
48,512 55,468
Financial liabilities BkAasE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BB EK AT ENT H AL
- Trade and retention payables (Note 19) — & B ENIE N ER
RE® (KL 19) 31,028 40,863
— Other payables (Note 20) — H th R 3RIB (a2 20) 1,730 1,713
- Bank borrowings (Note 21) —IRITIER(HZ21) 27,335 38,353
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) —HEBEW 715 1,046 141

61,139 81,070
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. ZR8BE & RERKHE

CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash flows used in operations

(a) REFMARTRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E=H —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Cash flows used in operations REFMARERE
Loss before tax BrEiRIE 1A (40,259) (13,815)
Adjustments for: AT R IEFE
Provision of impairment losses on B 5 RSB R EEE
trade receivables, net BB TR 126 205
Provision of impairment losses on BHEEREBERE
contract assets, net FRE 12,098 15
Write-off of contract assets BHEEME 11,207 -
Depreciation of plant and equipment  #28 R & EITE 160 284
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 786 727
Interest expense MERX 1,803 1,830
Interest income F EHBA (280) (133)
Operating loss before working EEESRBAINKEEE
capital changes (14,359) (10,887)
Decrease (Increase) in contract EHEBERDGEM
assets 30,073 (5,133)
Decrease in trade and other B MEMERFIE - ke
receivables, deposits and KIES FRIER A
prepayments 1,294 3,728
Decrease in trade and retention SN FIEREMRES
payables N (9,831) (331)
Increase (Decrease) in other payables — Efb & 3K TE & BT E A
and accrued expenses #nCRA) 439 (865)
Cash generated from (used in) rmEmSFTRRE
operations 7,616 (13,488)
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25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. B8 BHERERK T (E)

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities (b) FBEERENBMETH

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+t—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-=F g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFERAREE R E15)
(Note 15) 1,673 i
() Net debt reconciliation (0 BEXFHEEER
At 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E=—= S
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFEY 6,014 12,047
Bank borrowings — variable interest ~ $R{T{& 5k — F & F=E
rate (17,360) (28,798)
Lease liabilities — fixed interest rate HE&E - BEHXE (1,046) (141)
Net debt BEFE (12,392) (16,892)
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. ZEaBRE&REBRM T (&)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
() Net debt reconciliation (Continued) () EXFIEYHIRGE)
Liabilities from financing activities
METBHREEE
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITEM HESE FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FEL
Net cash at 1 January 2022 R-_E-_—_%#—A—H

ZHEEE (20,289) (881) (21,170)
Non-cash interest expenses RS FEFX - (28) (28)
Cash flows Reneg (8,509) 766 (7,743)
Foreign exchange adjustments HNE y 2 2

Net debt at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—F+=-8
=+—HZaEFE (28,798) (141) (28,939)
Non-cash interest expenses FREFERE a (66) (66)
Addition from new lease REFHEENRE = (1,673) (1,673)
Cash flows RenE 11,438 834 12,272

Net debt at 31 December 2023 HRZ-ZE=-=f+=§
=t-HZEEFE (17,360) (1,046) (18,406)
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26. CONTINGENCIES

26. AAREE

At 31 December

INTEEISR=[E
2023 2022
—=E=-= ===
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Performance bonds (Note a) BLIRES (B ita) 2,737 2,737
Corporate guarantee (Note b) EERE D) 13,491 13,491

Notes:

(@)  Certain customers require the Group to procure performance
bonds to be provided by a bank in favour of them as security
for due performance and observance of the obligations under
the contracts. In procuring such performance bonds, the Group
is usually required to place a required amount of deposit with
such bank. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory services to
the customers, the customers are entitled to seek compensation
from the bank for the amount of financial losses incurred not
exceeding the amount of the performance bonds. The Group
will then become liable to compensate the bank accordingly.
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no call
was made on any performance bonds of the Group. Typically,
the estimated consideration is not constrained for revenue
recognition.

(b) At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group provided corporate
guarantee amounted to approximately HK$13,491,000
to one customer as an indemnity for three construction
contracts. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, no corporate guarantee was being enforced. Typically,
the estimated consideration is not constrained for revenue
recognition.

Hiat -

BETREFERAEELZHRITIRMEIA
BERZmAZBAORE  EAIIH
BITREBETEHNBTIETZER- E
ZHEBRBRARER  AEEAFT
BEABBRITER— %ﬁiﬁﬁzr
e MAEERERNREFIRHEAEMR
BR7S - W%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%éi%ﬁ%%
CREMBTESKEE  BETBBEELN
REFESE - K& - ZISEIH%\;ﬁE
ELIEERE REBE-ZE-_=FK
R F+-A=+—HIEEFE
MEERNAEBENTMNEBEHNRES -
—MmE  ERARETZREERR
il o

R-_BE_=FK_FT_—_F+-_A=
+—H AEER—BEFPRHSE
FEIR#913,491,0008 7T - ER=1HEE
BHNRE BE_T-_=FRK=F
——H+-_A=+—HLEFE IE
BHIAITEMARER - —BME
AETRET WS TR o
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HE=ZT=—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

27.

28.

LITIGATION

In March 2022, a claim was submitted by a subcontractor of
the Group in Macau claiming the allegedly due and unpaid
balance of subcontracting fees against a subsidiary of the
Group in Macau for a sum of approximately MOP1,884,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,830,000). At 31 December
2023 and 2022, approximately MOP403,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$392,000) has been recognised as “Retention
payables”. Consulted the legal advice from an independent
legal counsel, the management of the Group are of the
opinion that the maximum liability of the Group will likely be
the total amount of claim. Accordingly, the Group has been
recognised the remaining subcontracting fees of approximately
MOP1,481,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,438,000) as
“Trade payables” at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
approving these consolidated financial statements, the
litigation is still in process and the court hearing date is still
pending.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members
of the board of directors and senior management of the
Company who have the responsibility for the planning and
controlling the activities of the Group. The remuneration of
directors and the senior management during the year is as
follows:

27.

28.

I'

SR EA
RZEBE-_—_F=1  AEENEMAHNSD

BEEAEEN—ERPHE QR RESY
RE RREBIBANNSBEBHE
491,884,000 9% (FE 74 491,830,000
BIL) c MZBE-=FR_-_T-__F+
—“A=1+—H8 ' #403,0008F5% (185
7 #9392,000/8 L) EFER A FETIRE
| EEABIARBERMNEZER
ZIK%IEEE*’ BAEENTZAEER
REAREETE - EHIt  ARER_ZE
—_iﬁ_z::¢+_ﬂz+—aﬁ
REBD B EH1,481,00008 94 (=
R #91,438,00078 T) B ESFEMFRIAE] -

R_B_=F+_A=+—HZ®E&ERE
EREEaNBHRREMZB - FRMD
EETH  EEAHSDKRE -

B Bt 05 5 BB
TEEEA B HH

TZEEABRRRARAEZTEND

REEEKE RERE ﬁ?ﬂ&% A
SENEY EERSREEENFA
HYFFBHAD T -

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1t—HLEEE

2023 2022

—E=H —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT T

Salaries and other benefits e hEmEF 7.236 8,082
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 1,835 1,025
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme R {R4E FI 5T 214 7% 54 72
9,125 9,179
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29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 29. ARFME R BN
COMPANY
The Company has direct and indirect equity interests in the RARRUTHBARBEEE LHE
following subsidiaries: Rk :
Issued
and fully
Place and paid share
Name of date of Principal place capital/quota  Equity interest attributable
subsidiaries incorporation of business capital to the Group Principal activities
MRS ig BRTRYR A58
WELAAR L Exuy B4/ RERK EiRE IEED
2023 202
ZEC= it S
Botop Engineering (Macau) Limited * Macau, Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of supply, installation
5 March 2007 and fitting-out services of
MVAC system for buildings in
Macau
BEITR(EM) - ABRAF R P 25,0008 RAMARTRESHEE
ZERtE RERZGOMHE - Tk
=AEA REERS
Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited * Hong Kong, Hong Kong HK$700 100% 100%  Provision of supply, installation
25 July 1996 and fitting-out services of
MVAC system for buildings in
Hong Kong
RETE(ERARAR Bk Bk 70077 RERRRTRIENER
—hARE FRZONHEE 2k
i i E&BRE
Wing Fung Investment Management The BV, Hong Kong US§1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited # 22 September 2016
Wing Fung Investment Management ABEAREE. R I RERK
Limitedt NS
MAZT=H
Wing Fung Enterprises Asia Limited * Hong Kong, 19 Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Trading of construction materials
December 2022
REEXTHERAD! Bk - B AT EEREIH
g f%
TZATAB
& Subsidiary indirectly held by the Company and is the subsidiary . AARHERENRBLE @ W&
of Wing Fung Investment Management Limited Wing Fung Investment Management
Limited &y Fff @ 2 7
i Subsidiaries directly held by the Company e RAREEFBNRE QR
All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies. FiE LB AR RBERAR - KA
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during FESIREER  ZEMBRARTHESE

the year or at the end of the year. TRERESES -
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. A =) B AR R 3R
THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the CO (Cap. 622), PRI R B (%622;)5’1?&&%%@“{ ¥iN
the statement of financial position of the Company and the NEMPBRRE REFEHEEBH I W
movements in its reserves is set out below: TS 3
2023 2022
—E-=F —_EF-—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat FTERT FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE )
Investments in subsidiaries EAW%’ATE'J&Q 37,966 37,966
Amount due from subsidiaries e Sy NCIE QL (a) 5,093 6,124
43,059 44,090
Current assets RBEE :
Other receivables, deposits and ~ EMEWRFIE « & K&
prepayments TEfI IR 1,351 1,459
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 447 285
1,798 1,744
Total assets EEHSE 44,857 45,834
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JES — B B A Rl (b) 15,283 10,506
Current liabilities nEBAE
Other payables and accrued ELAth 5 FRIE Jo
expenses FEFTE 2,010 1,742
Total liabilities =RitbE] 17,293 12,248
Net assets EEFE 27,564 33,586
Equity =
Share capital [ 22(i) 6,490 6,490
Reserves & (c) 21,074 27,096
Total equity MR 27,564 33,586
This statement of financial position was approved and APBRRNRCEEEZERN _T_MF
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March AT NBRERBEERBELHUT
2024 and are signed on its behalf by: ATREESE -
Chung Chi Keung Lai Suk Fan EE B

Director Director = E2
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. A2 B IBAR M = ()

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: Hfat -

(@)  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are () HABAEER THEXLBHKR
expected to be recovered after twelve months from the end of HEHREFT T @A BIKE -
the reporting period.

(b)  The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is expected (b)y FZARBEAEER  TFHEXLEHER
to be repaid after twelve months from the end of the reporting WERRES T _EARERE -
period.

() The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follow: (0 ARFRFEBHENEBHT

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
IR 4518 BEXRFEE E-S BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2022 R-ZT——
— 2| =& 50,549 11,676 (29,582) 32,643
Loss for the year and total FABERFA
comprehensive expenses for 2 HEMAX B
the year S = (5,547) (5,547)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 R-ZE-_—_F+_H
January 2023 =il I
—=%—HA—H 50,549 11,676 (35,129) 27,096
Loss for the year and total FABERFA
comprehensive expenses for 2 4%
the year - - (6,022) (6,022)
At 31 December 2023 R=B==F
+=BA=+—8H 50,549 11,676 (41,151) 21,074
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B EHE

For the five years ended 31 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and

2023

RESULTS

HE_Z-NAF _T_FTF -

— = —

— =

F B FRZF=F+A=+—

HIEREFE

ES

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BL%E

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“B-=f ZF-CF “F--fF ZRCRF CENA
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Consolidated results SAEE THET AT T FEx &
Revenue Wz 114,570 184,020 174,824 221,225 190,486
Gross profit (oss) EF(ER) 3,062 486 (7,220) 41,664 45,244
(Loss) Profit before income tax B PTS 50 A (&5 18) S5 (40,259) (13,815) (24,906) 25,712 26,171
(Loss) Profit for the year FN(BE)EF (35,905) (11,199) (21,823) 22,571 21,311
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENREE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f Z—T--f ZE-—F ZZ-TF ZE-NF
Consolidated assets BEEER HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities =1 THET TAT FTAT TAL FAT
Total assets BEE 130,799 186,244 188,110 216,618 140,739
Total liabilities Bafk (65,136) (84,618) (75,035) (91,828) (38,615)
Net assets BEZE 65,663 101,626 113,075 124,790 102,124
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